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Internal Controls 
In developing and evaluating the County's accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of the County's 
internal controls.  Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding: the 
safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; and the reliability of financial records for 
preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets.  The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and the evaluation of costs and 
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 
 
All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework.  We believe the County's internal accounting 
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.  
The County's internal controls are supported by written policies and procedures and are continually reviewed, 
evaluated, and modified to meet current needs. 
 
Departmental cash related procedures are reviewed at least annually to determine if there are adequate controls in 
place, such as separation of duties, appropriate documentation, proper authorizations, and required absences. The 
Public Services and Revenue’s auditor has made a concerted effort to gather written procedures that include enough 
detail to assess internal control strengths and weakness. Throughout the year, controls are monitored, reevaluated and 
adjusted as necessary.  
 
Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that management provide a narrative introduction, 
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction 
with it.  Dakota County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 
 
 
Profile of the Government 
 
Dakota County was organized in 1849 as a county in the State of Minnesota.  It has an area of 593 square miles, 
including 13 townships and 21 full and fractional incorporated municipalities.  The 2009 population was 392,755 
making it the third most populous county in the State.  It is one of seven counties comprising the Twin Cities 
metropolitan area.  The county seat, Hastings, is located on the Mississippi River 18 miles southeast of the state 
capital, St. Paul. 
 
Dakota County operates under an elected seven-member County Board, each member representing a district of the 
County.  The County Board is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, and the 
hiring of the County’s Administrator.  The County Administrator is responsible for carrying out the policies and 
ordinances of the County Board, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, and for appointing the 
heads of the various divisions and departments.  The County Board is elected on a non-partisan basis.  County Board 
members serve four-year staggered terms.   
 
The County provides a full range of services including public safety and law enforcement; probation services; tax 
assessment and collection; vital statistics and public records; health and human services; highways, parks, public 
works and planning; environmental management; and recreation and cultural services. 
 
Various potential component units were evaluated to determine whether they should be reported in the County’s 
financial report.  A component unit was considered part of the County’s reporting entity when it was concluded that 
the County was financially accountable for the entity or the nature and significance of the relationship between the 
County and the entity was such that exclusion would cause the County’s financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete.  Dakota County has one blended component unit, the Dakota County Regional Rail Authority (Authority).  
The Authority was created pursuant to Minnesota Statutes.  The Dakota County Board of Commissioners appoints the 
Authority’s seven-member board.  The Dakota County Community Development Agency (Agency) is a discretely 
presented component unit.  The Agency was established in 1971 pursuant to special Minnesota legislation.  The 
Dakota County Board of Commissioners also appoints its seven-member board.  The Vermillion River Watershed  
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Joint Powers Organization (VRW) is also a discretely presented component unit.  VRW was established in 2002 for 
purposes set forth in Minn. Stat. §103B.201 within the geographic boundary of the Vermillion River watershed 
located in Dakota County and Scott County.  The Vermillion River Watershed Joint Powers Board consists of one 
county commissioner from Scott County and two county commissioners from Dakota County.   
 
 
Budgetary Controls 
 
The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Dakota County Government financial planning and control.  The 
County budgets at a more detailed level than required by Minnesota law or for federal programs.  Divisions and 
departments develop their budget requests to cover their clients’ needs, keeping in mind general guidelines set by the 
County Board of Commissioners.  The divisions and departments submit their budget requests to the County 
Administrator, who must balance the competing needs against available resources.  The County Board makes final 
adjustments to the budgets, which are then adopted and available for use on January 1 each year.   
 
Division and department managers are held responsible for their budget performance.  Authority for County staff to 
spend and amend the budget is identified in the Budget Compliance Policy, adopted in 1996.  Compliance with 
budgets is essential for the County to maintain its sound financial condition.  “Budget Accountability Points” are 
identified in the policy to inform managers at what level budget comparisons will be reported.  This allows managers 
authority to “mix and match” spending below the “Budget Accountability Points” to help achieve their desired 
outcomes.  The Budget Compliance Policy provides managers the ability to respond efficiently and effectively to 
changes up to $50,000 while leaving the County Board to concentrate its efforts on significant budget issues.   
 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
 
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the 
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Dakota County Government operates. 
 
Key population, labor force and employment trends:  
 
• The County’s population change from 1990 to 2000 was an increase of 29.3%, exceeding the State’s 12.4% 

increase.  Strong population growth in Dakota County has been expected to continue, but at a slower rate.  Most 
recent published population projection forecast the population to grow to 429,160 in 2010, representing an 
increase of 20.6% for the decade (2000-2010), though recent data suggests the County will fall well short of that 
level. 

 
• Recent economic conditions have resulted in challenges for many residents of Dakota County.  Since 2001, the 

unemployment rate in Dakota County has generally increased, largely in line with both state and national 
unemployment trends.  Typically, the County’s unemployment rate is below both state and national numbers.  At 
the end of 2009, Dakota County’s unemployment rate was 7%, the State’s unemployment rate was 7.3% and the 
national unemployment rate was 9.7%.  One major lay-off in the area is the result of the merger of Northwest and 
Delta airlines.  Due to the resulting duplication of jobs at the headquarter level – an estimated 1,150 individuals 
will be laid off at the Eagan site.   

 
• Incomes in Dakota County have continued to remain above the State of Minnesota average.  Between 2000 and 

2008, median per capita income rose in Dakota County 26.7% from $36,577 in 2000 to $46,357 in 2008.  Median 
per capita income in the State increased by 34.1%, from $32,014 in 2000 to $42,953 in 2008.    

 
• Approximately 232,204 residents were engaged in the labor force in 2009; 215,162 employed and 17,402 actively 

seeking work.  Future labor force growth depends on the growth in the working-age population and rates of 
participation.  The fastest growing segment of the labor force will be people 65 years of age and over. 
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• During the fourth quarter 2009, there were 15,040 job vacancies in the Twin Cities seven-county region, or 1.0 
opening for every 100 existing jobs in the region.  This was a 17% decline in job openings compared to fourth 
quarter 2008. The health care and social assistance industry accounted for the most openings (3,190) followed by 
retail trade (1,730), educational services (1,480), and manufacturing (1,250).  More than half of all job vacancies 
require some form of post-secondary education and training.  Over 40% of job opening required related work  
experience; 28% required a certificate or license.  The largest numbers of job openings by occupation in the Twin 
Cities were for home health aides (780), retail salespersons (690), cashiers (390), registered nurses (390) and 
nursing aides, orderlies and attendants (330). 

 
• In 2008, 94% of adult residents in Dakota county had a high school diploma or higher.  Over 38% residents 25 

years of age and over had a Bachelor’s or advanced degree in 2008. 
 
• Residents of Dakota County are employed in all occupations, regardless of where they work.  Almost 70% of 

employed residents work in management, professional; or sales and office occupations.  Male residents are more 
likely than female residents to be employed in production, transportation, construction and maintenance 
occupations. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The above chart shows unemployment rates from 2001 through 2009.  Dakota County maintains a lower average 
unemployment  rate than Minnesota and the U.S.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 
 



 
 
 
 
Following is an analysis of non-agricultural wage and salary employment in Dakota County by industry: 
 
 
         Dakota County       Distribution % Change 2007-2008
    Avg Number of Employees Dakota State of  
 2007 2008 County Minnesota County State
Total, All Industries           176,417          174,593 100.0% 100.0% -0.1% -0.3%

Agricultural, Forestry, Fishing                  783                 779 0.4% 0.7% -0.5% 1.4%
Mining                  149                 136 0.1% 0.2%     -9.6% 5.2%
Construction             10,579              9,564 5.5% 4.4% -10.6% -8.3%
Manufacturing             19,273            19,442 11.1% 13.3% 0.9% -1.8%
Utilities                  429                 432 0.2% 0.5% 0.7% 3.3%
Wholesale Trade              10,473            10,027 5.7% 5.0% -4.4% -0.1%
Retail Trade             22,676            22,021 12.6% 11.1% -3.0% -2.3%

Information               9,120              9,045 5.2% 2.3% -0.8% -0.4%
Finance, Ins. & Real Estate             12,028            11,976 6.9% 6.7% -0.4% 1.7%
Services             52,557            53,335 30.5% 43.6% 1.5% -1.0%
Other                                                     38,350           37,836 21.7% 12.4% -1.4% 0.7%
   

Total, All Industries -- Government             19,643            19,915 11.4% 14.0% 1.4% 1.2%
Total, All Industries -- Private           156,775          154,678 88.6% 86.0% -1.4% -0.5%
   
 
Source: www.deed.state.mn.us 
 
 
The following shows the change in the value of construction permits in Dakota County over the last five years.  The 
construction permits have been separated into five categories. 

 
Value of New Construction Permits Issued in the County (in thousands) 

 
   

 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009     

      
Residential $925,245 $746,442 $651,100 $350,166 $230,307 
Commercial 118,579 176,246 151,496 163,520 68,309 
Industrial 12,000 22,047 6,730 23,711 12,220 
Agricultural 7,350 3,732 3,454 2,087 1,814 
Apartments 65,517 23,281 29,049 11,786 21,155 
   
Total Value $1,128,691 $971,748 $841,829 $551,270 $333,805 

      

  

   
Source:  Dakota County Assessor’s Office 
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Financial Institutions in the County 

Banks 
Deposits as of 

December 31, 2009 
Bremer Bank, National Association          $ 2,036,814,013  
Vermillion State Bank                377,033,356  
Minnwest Bank Metro                277,344,828 
Premier Bank Minnesota                172,635,018  
Castle Rock Bank                113,860,345  
Provincial Bank                  66,094,262  
Gateway Bank                  64,513,218  
First State Bank of Rosemount                  56,054,545 
Lakeville Bank                   52,124,459  
Key Community Bank                  46,933,398 
Rosemount National Bank                  35,237,560  

  
Total          $ 3,298,795,824  
  
Branches of Twin Cities financial institutions are also located throughout the County. 
Source:  Federal Reserve Bank (Minneapolis) homepage 
 
 
Major Initiatives by Dakota County 
 
Dakota County government had the following highlights in 2009: 
 

In February, Dakota County opened the Robert Trail Library in Rosemount – the ninth library in the Dakota 
County Library system. 
 
The new Enterprise Resources Planning Project (ERP) Phase I Design contract was awarded to SunGard.  More 
than a dozen different functions are planned to be handled by the one web-based software package.  It will help 
employees work more efficiently by reducing redundancies and streamlining processes.  If the project proceeds to 
Phase II Implementation, it is expected to go live by January 1, 2012. 
 
The Dakota County Board of Commissioners adopted the Dakota County Comprehensive Plan in May. The 
strategic plan provides a vision for Dakota County over the next 20 years.  
 
Dakota County continued the process of developing a new regional park in Empire Township.   
 
In the spring, the Dakota County Recycling Zone (formerly known as the Dakota County Eco-Site) received its 
new name.  The space was also remodeled to make it more inviting to users and an open house was held in June. 
 
Dakota County Public Health vaccinated thousands in 2009 by holding immunization clinics throughout the 
County. 
 
The Lebanon Hills Visitor Center earned LEED (Leadership in Energy & Environmental Design) certification in 
April.  Leadership in Energy & Environmental Design is an internationally recognized green building certification 
system developed by the U.S. Green Building Council (USGBC). 
 
Dakota County’s Geographic Information Systems led the state in developing maps based on the U.S. National 
Grid System.  The national grid is commonly used for emergency management, and the maps provide a common 
reference for first responders and other agencies. 
 
Dakota County launched the reverse 911 system in September through the Dakota Communication Center. 
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Through the summer the transportation department constructed improvements to County Road 70. 
The Dakota County Board approved the contract to begin planning for the Vermillion River Corridor Plan and 
Greenways Collaboration Plan. 

 
Many actions were taken to adapt to a changing fiscal environment.  Some of the most significant follow: 

 
In August, Dakota County adjusted its budget to account for the loss of $5 million in investment income and $2.8 
million in state funds due to state budget cuts. 
 
Dakota County Board of commissioners passed the 2010 budget in December 2009 with no levy increase.  Dakota 
County has a long-held tradition of having the lowest county tax rate in the state of Minnesota. 
 
In the adopted 2010 budget the Board permanently eliminated a net of 55 county jobs, delayed building projects, 
reduced training and traveling budgets and reduced spending on capital equipment. 
 
After freezing their own salaries, the Dakota County Board of commissioners adopted a budget for 2010 based in 
part on a freeze in employee wages in response to state budget cuts. 
 
Fleet Management purchased a number of hybrid vehicles and purchased smaller vehicles when possible to reduce 
replacement and fuel costs in 2009 and for years to come. 

 
 
Future Dakota County plans include: 
 

• Starting implementation of a new campground reservation system to make it easier for citizens to register for 
campgrounds online; 

• Continuing to monitor state budget developments for impact on the county and adjust county plans as 
required. 

 
 
Employee Labor Contracts 
 
The 12 collective bargaining units listed below represent approximately 70% of the County’s employees.  The status 
of the contracts is as of December 31, 2009. 
 
Bargaining Unit                                                          Term of contract       Status of Contract 
AFSCME - Human Services 2008-2009             Settled  
AFSCME - Library 2008-2009   Settled 
Assessing Services 2008-2009   Settled 
Attorney Employees’ Assoc. 2008-2009   Settled 
Community Corrections 2008-2009   Settled 
Human Services Supervisors’ Assoc. 2008-2009           Settled 
Park Maintenance 2008-2009   Settled 
Facilities Management 2008-2009   Settled 
Public Health Services/MNA 2008-2009   Settled 
Road & Bridge Maintenance 2008-2009   Settled 
Sheriff Adm/Support 2008-2009   Settled 
Sheriff Licensed Deputies 2009   Settled 
 
All contracts start January 1 and end December 31. 
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2009 Dakota County Organizational Structure 

 
 

Dakota County Residents 
 

  

Dakota County Board of Commissioners 
 

  

County Administration  
 

 County Administrator 
 

 Employee Relations 
   

 

Communications 
  
 

    

 

Financial Services  
 

 
 

  

              
              

County 
Attorney 

 

 Operations, 
Management 
and Budget 

 

 

 

Public Services 
and Revenue 

Division 
 

 Community 
Services Division 

 

 Physical 
Development 

Division 
 

 Administration 
 

Administration 
 

Administration 
 

Administration 
 

Public Safety 
 

 Operations 
Management  

 

 
 

Assessor 
 

 Social Services 
 

 Office of GIS 
 

County Sheriff 
 

  

Information 
Technology 

 

Property Taxation 
and Records 

 

Employment and 
Economic 
Assistance 

 

Survey 
 

Transportation 
 

County 
Coroner 

 Office of Planning 
& Analysis 

 

 Service and 
License Centers 

 

 Public Health 
 

 Parks 
 

  CJIIN 
 County Fair 

Community 
Corrections 

 

Environmental 
Management 

 
  

 
 

Historical Society 
 Veterans Services 

 

 Water Resources 
Office 

 
    Library 

 
 Extension 

Services
 Soil and Water 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 Community 
Development 

Agency 

 

 

 
 

Notes:   
1. The County Board has a funding liaison role with departments listed in italics (County Attorney; County Sheriff; Medical Examiner; County 

Library; Historical Society; County Fair; Extension Services; Soil and Water Conservation District; and Community Development Agency).  
The County Board has direct administrative control over departments not listed in italics.  
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Dakota County 
MINNESOTA 

 
ORGANIZATION 

 
2009 

 
 
 
 

    Term 
Officer Name From To 
    
Commissioners:    
 1st District Joseph A. Harris Jan. 1981 Dec. 2012 
 2nd District *Kathleen A. Gaylord Jan. 2003 Dec. 2010 
 3rd District Thomas A. Egan Jan. 2005 Dec. 2012 
 4th District Nancy Schouweiler Jan. 1999 Dec. 2010 
 5th District Liz Workman Jan. 2009 Dec. 2012 
 6th District Paul J. Krause Jan. 1995 Dec. 2010 
 7th District Willis E. Branning Jan. 1997 Dec. 2012 

    
    
Officers:    
  Elected -     
 Attorney James C. Backstrom Sep. 1987 Dec. 2010 
 Sheriff Don Gudmundson Jan. 1995 Dec. 2010 
    
    
  Appointed -     
 County Administrator Brandt Richardson May 1992 Indefinite 
 Director of Operations, Mgmt. & Budget John C. Ditmore Mar. 1992 Indefinite 
 Director of Community Services David A. Rooney Feb. 1988 Indefinite 
 Director of Physical Development Lenora M. Thompson Dec. 2008 Indefinite 
 Director of Public Service & Revenue Div. Thomas V. Novak July  1998 Indefinite 
    
    
    
    
* Chair    
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An Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
REBECCA OTTO 
STATE AUDITOR 

 STATE OF MINNESOTA 
OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR 

 
SUITE 500 

525 PARK STREET 
SAINT PAUL, MN  55103-2139 

  
 
 
 
 
 

(651) 296-2551 (Voice) 
(651) 296-4755 (Fax) 

state.auditor@state.mn.us (E-mail) 
1-800-627-3529 (Relay Service) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of County Commissioners 
Dakota County 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of  Dakota County, Minnesota, as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2009, including the Community Development Agency (CDA) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial 
statements, as listed in the table of contents.  These financial statements are the responsibility of 
Dakota County’s management.  Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit.  We did not audit the financial statements of the Dakota County 
CDA, which represent 99.4 percent, 99.3 percent, and 97.7 percent, respectively, of the assets, 
net assets, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units.  Those financial 
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our 
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Dakota County CDA, is based solely 
on the report of the other auditors. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that 
our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. 



14 

 
 
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Dakota 
County as of December 31, 2009, including the Dakota County CDA as of June 30, 2009, and 
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the 
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Highway, Community Services, 
and County Parks Special Revenue Funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the required supplementary information as 
listed in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are 
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  We 
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary 
information.  However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 
 
Our audit was made for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Dakota County’s basic financial statements.  The supplementary 
information and governmental revenue schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to 
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.   
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
June 28, 2010, on our consideration of Dakota County’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 
 
 
 
REBECCA OTTO GREG HIERLINGER, CPA 
STATE AUDITOR DEPUTY STATE AUDITOR 
 
June 28, 2010 
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Dakota County’s Financial Management offers readers this narrative overview and analysis of financial activities for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2009.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional 
information furnished in our letter of transmittal and the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

• Dakota County’s assets exceeded liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year (12/31/09) by $750,032,493 (net 
assets).  Of this amount, $198,275,721 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. 

• Dakota County’s total net assets increased by $50,660,233 over 2008.  This is primarily a result an increase in capital 
assets.   

• As of the close of the 2009 fiscal year, Dakota County governmental funds ending fund balances were $229,744,717, 
compared to $219,194,188 in 2008.  This increase is primarily due to increased revenues seen in the Highway Fund for 
previous year expenditures and budget savings in operations.  Approximately 79.5%, or $182,526,726 of the total fund 
balance is available for spending at Dakota County’s discretion (unreserved fund balance). 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $65,165,879 or 72.8% of total 
General Fund expenditures, a decrease of $2,757,585 in comparison with the prior year. 

 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Dakota County’s basic financial statements.  Dakota 
County’s basic financial statements consist of three components:  1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial 
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This report contains other supplementary information in addition to the 
basic financial statements. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a 
broad overview of Dakota County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of Dakota County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the 
two reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of Dakota County is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how Dakota County’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal 
year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash 
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Dakota County that are principally supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant 
portion of their cost through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of Dakota County 
include general government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, human services, health, culture and recreation, 
conservation of natural resources, and economic development.  The business-type activities of Dakota County include the 
Dakota County Geographic Information System (GIS) and Dakota County Criminal Justice Information Integration Network 
(CJIIN). 
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The government-wide financial statements include not only Dakota County (known as the primary government), but also the 
legally separate Community Development Agency (CDA) and the legally separate Vermillion River Watershed (VRW), for 
which Dakota County is financially accountable (known as component units).  Financial information for the CDA and the VRW 
are reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.  The Regional Rail Authority, 
although also legally separate, functions for all practical purposes as a department of Dakota County, and therefore has been 
included as an integral part of the primary government. 
 
The government-wide financial statements may be found on pages 25-29 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives.  Dakota County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to 
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of Dakota County may be divided 
into three broad categories:  governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances 
of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s 
near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to 
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s 
near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds 
and governmental activities. 
 
Within the governmental funds, Dakota County maintains four fund types:  General, Special Revenue, Debt Services and Capital 
Projects.  Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the major funds.  Major funds include:  General Fund, Highway Fund, 
Community Services Fund, Parks Fund, Debt Service Fund, and Capital Projects Fund.  Data from the other five special revenue 
non-major governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of the non-
major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
Dakota County adopts an annual budget for its six major governmental funds and the Library, Regional Rail and Environmental 
Management non-major special revenue funds.  A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for these funds to 
demonstrate compliance with their budgets. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements may be found on pages 31-42 of this report. 
 
General Fund.  The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources not required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Special Revenue Fund.  Special Revenue governmental funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.  The Special Revenue Funds include: 
 

• Highway • County Library • Regional Rail 
• Community Services • County Parks • Law Library 
• Environmental Management • Attorney Forfeiture  
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Debt Service Fund.  The Debt Service Fund accounts for the payment of principal, interest and fiscal charges on long-term debt 
obligations of Dakota County. 
 
Capital Projects Fund.  The Capital Projects Fund tracks major building construction projects. 
 
Proprietary Funds.  Dakota County maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and an internal service 
fund.  The enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements.  Dakota County uses an enterprise fund to account for its Geographic Information System financial activity 
including the sale of GIS data/maps and costs of updating the GIS database.  In 2009 an additional enterprise fund, Criminal 
Justice Information Integration Network (CJIIN) Fund, was created to account for revenue received from criminal justice 
agencies that use the County’s applications.  The internal service fund is an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate 
costs internally among Dakota County’s various functions.  Dakota County created such a fund in 1997 called the Employee 
Services Reserve Fund.  All compensated absences were transferred to it in 1997.  Each year an adjustment is made to reflect the 
current value of current vacation and sick balances.  In 2007, the activity for the other post employment benefits was included in 
this fund. This fund has no equity balance as the cash balance is offset by a long-term liability.  Because this service 
predominantly benefits governmental rather than business-type functions it has been included with governmental activities in the 
government wide financial statements. 
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.  The 
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the GIS Enterprise Fund and the CJIIN Enterprise Fund.  
The Employee Services Reserve Internal Service Fund is reported separately on the proprietary fund financial statements. 
 
The basic proprietary fund financial statements may be found on pages 43-45 this report. 
 
Fiduciary Funds.  Fiduciary funds (Trust and Agency Funds) are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside the government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of 
those funds are not available to support Dakota County’s own programs.  The accounting method used for fiduciary funds is 
much like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
The basic fiduciary fund financial statements may be found on pages 46-47 of this report. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the 
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
The notes to the financial statements may be found on pages 48-78 of this report. 
 
Other Information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
supplementary information.  The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds and 
fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules may be found on pages 81-103 of this report. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, the change in net asset amounts may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  
In the case of Dakota County, assets exceeded liabilities by $750,032,493 at the close of 2009, which is an increase of 
$50,660,233 over 2008. 
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Capital assets, net of related debt, of $545,729,953 (e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, 
improvements other than buildings and construction in progress, less any related debt used to acquire assets that is still 
outstanding) represents the largest portion of net assets (72.8%).  Dakota County uses capital assets to provide services to 
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for current spending.  Although Dakota County’s investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay debt must be provided from other 
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate current liabilities. 
 

Dakota County’s Net Assets 
         

 Governmental  Business-type   
 activities  activities  Total 

 2009  2008 2009  2008  2009  2008 
      

Current and other assets  $   289,685,356   $  288,388,580   $     298,146  $      197,468   $    289,983,502  $  288,586,048 

Capital assets       612,627,712       579,420,843                     -                      -        612,627,712       579,420,843 

     Total assets       902,313,068       867,809,423          298,146          197,468         902,611,214       868,006,891 

   
Long-term liabilities outstanding       112,979,472       118,608,772                     -                      -        112,979,472       118,608,772 

Other liabilities         39,599,249         50,025,858                     -                     1           39,599,249         50,025,859 

     Total liabilities       152,578,721      168,634,630                     -                     1         152,578,721       168,634,631 

Net assets:         

Invested in capital assets, net         

   of related debt       545,729,953       502,664,473                     -                      -        545,729,953       502,664,473 

Restricted           5,860,387           8,289,724          166,432          197,467             6,026,819           8,487,191 

Unrestricted       198,144,007       188,220,596          131,714                      -        198,275,721       188,220,596 

     Total net assets  $   749,734,347  $  699,174,793  $     298,146  $      197,467  $    750,032,493  $  699,372,260 
 
Dakota County’s total net assets increased by $50,660,233 from the 2008 ending balance.  This increase is a combination of 
many factors, but the primary changes are in capital assets (increases in buildings, infrastructure, and the acquisition of land) and 
budget savings from operations. 
 
An additional portion of Dakota County’s net assets, $6,026,819 or 0.8%, represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used.  Restricted net assets decreased $2,460,372 during the current fiscal year.  This is due to 
the purchase of the Real Estate Management System (REMS) which resulted in a decreased obligation for Property Records’ 
equipment replacement.  The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets of $198,275,721 may be used to meet Dakota 
County’s  obligations to citizens and creditors.   
 
At the end of the 2009, Dakota County has positive balances in all three categories of net assets, including the government as a 
whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.  The results are similar to 2008. 
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Governmental Activities.  Governmental activities increased Dakota County’s net assets by $50,559,554 from 2008, thereby 
accounting for more than 100% of the total growth in the net assets of Dakota County.  A key element of this growth was the 
increase in capital assets of $33,206,869.  The majority of the increase in capital assets resulted from infrastructure ($9,210,757) 
due to the completion of several street construction projects along with land ($7,879,436) which includes the purchase of several 
properties to be used as parkland, some of which was purchased through the Farmland and Natural Area Program (FNAP), and 
buildings ($8,171,280) due to the completion of the Robert Trail Library and renovations to Wescott Library and Wentworth 
Library.   
 
Business-type Activities.  Business-type activities increased Dakota County’s net assets by $100,679 accounting for less than 
1% of the total change in the government’s net assets. 
 
 

Dakota County’s Changes in Net Assets 

 Governmental Business-type   
 activities activities  Total 
 2009  2008 2009  2008  2009  2008 
Revenues:        
Program revenues:        
 Fees, charges, fines and other  $    32,644,093  $    28,537,689  $   151,235  $   20,309   $    32,795,328  $   28,557,998 
 Operating grants & contributions      104,397,450      103,309,265                  -                  -        104,397,450     103,309,265 
 Capital grants & contributions        10,568,802        24,648,824                  -                  -          10,568,802       24,648,824 
General revenues:       
 Taxes      129,546,340      124,030,432                  -                  -        129,546,340     124,030,432 
 Grants & contributions not      
 restricted to specific programs        21,681,301        15,950,219                  -                  -          21,681,301       15,950,219 
 Gifts and contributions               54,260               34,890                  -                  -                 54,260              34,890 
 Investment income          3,981,969        13,764,069                  -                  -            3,981,969       13,764,069 
 Other          2,035,555          1,582,415                  -                  -            2,035,555         1,582,415 
  Total revenues      304,909,770      311,857,803       151,235       20,309       305,061,005     311,878,112 
         
Expenses:        
 General government        48,513,659        58,446,661                  -                  -          48,513,659       58,446,661 
 Public safety        37,363,437        37,499,603                  -                  -          37,363,437       37,499,603 
 Highways and streets        24,016,682        20,428,908                  -                  -          24,016,682       20,428,908 
 Sanitation          5,476,281          3,498,126                  -                  -            5,476,281         3,498,126 
 Human services        85,401,690        94,467,561                  -                  -          85,401,690       94,467,561 
 Health        14,371,483        14,441,444                  -                  -          14,371,483       14,441,444 
 Culture and recreation        19,746,598        17,160,436                  -                  -          19,746,598       17,160,436 
 Conservation of natural resources          4,560,051          4,783,651                  -                  -            4,560,051         4,783,651 
 Economic development        10,540,298          7,712,727                  -                  -          10,540,298         7,712,727 
 Interest          4,360,037          4,910,143                  -                  -            4,360,037         4,910,143 
 Operating expenses - GIS                        -                        -          50,556       40,082                50,556              40,082 
  Total expenses      254,350,216      263,349,260         50,556       40,082       254,400,772     263,389,342 
Increase (decrease) in net assets        50,559,554        48,508,543       100,679      (19,773)        50,660,233       48,488,770 
Net assets 1/1      699,174,793      650,666,250       197,467     217,240       699,372,260     650,883,490 
Net assets 12/31  $  749,734,347  $  699,174,793  $   298,146  $ 197,467  $  750,032,493  $ 699,372,260 
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Expenses and Program Revenues – Governmental Activities 
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, Dakota County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds.  The focus of Dakota County governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing Dakota County’s financing 
requirements.  In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available 
for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of 2009, Dakota County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $229,744,717 an 
increase of $10,550,529 in comparison with the prior year.  This includes budget savings from operations of $2,801,438 along 
with a savings of $7,747,229 on capital projects.  Most of the fund balance, $182,526,726, is unreserved, which is available for 
spending at the government’s discretion.  The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new 
spending because it has already been committed for specific purposes.  Most of the reserved fund balance is for Debt Service 
($33,266,623), the Farmland and Natural Area Program ($5,305,533), and encumbrances ($4,874,749).  These funds are 
dedicated for payment of bonds, the preservation of farmland and natural areas, and outstanding construction obligations.   
 
General Fund.  The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Dakota County.  At the end of 2009, the General Fund fund 
balance was $73,657,313 of which $65,165,879 was unreserved.  As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful 
to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  Unreserved fund balance represents 
72.8% of total General Fund expenditures of $89,478,602, while total fund balance represents 82.3% of that same amount. 
 
The unreserved fund balance of Dakota County’s General Fund decreased by $2,757,585 during 2009.  This change is primarily 
due to lower than expected interest rates causing a decrease in investment earnings.         
 
Highway Fund.  The Highway Fund had total fund balance of $7,224,073 at the end of 2009.  The fund balance of the Highway 
Fund increased by $11,614,949 during the current fiscal year.  Revenue was received in 2009 from external sources for projects 
budgeted for and completed in 2008 causing an increase in fund balance for the current year as opposed to the large decrease 
seen in the previous year.   
 
Community Services Fund.  The Community Services Fund had a total fund balance of $60,465,633 at the end of 2009.  This is 
Dakota County’s largest operating fund due to receipt of external revenues.  The fund balance of the Community Services Fund 
increased by $7,358,794 during the current fiscal year compared to an increase of $3,858,138 in the previous period.  
Expenditure savings in various Community Services programs, primarily personnel cost savings and increased revenue received 
in charges for services in excess of budget amounts were the major factors for the increase.   
 
Parks Fund.  The Parks Fund had a total fund balance of $7,098,291 at the end of 2009.  The fund balance of the Parks Fund 
increased by $469,095 during the current fiscal year.  The increase is due to expenditure savings for capital projects which will 
be carried over to 2010 along with revenue received for projects completed and budgeted for in 1997.     
 
Debt Services Fund.  The Debt Services Fund had a total fund balance of $33,266,623 at the end of 2009, all of which is 
reserved for the payment of debt service.  The fund balance of the Debt Services Fund decreased by $408,559 during 2009.  This 
change is due to the use of proceeds from the issuance of refunding bonds to make bond payments on bonds which have not yet 
reached their call date, offset by interest earnings on unspent bond proceeds.   
 
Capital Projects Fund.  The Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $17,043,782.  The fund balance for the Capital 
Projects Fund decreased by $2,960,516 during 2009 compared to a decrease of $8,483,484 in 2008.  The decreases in 2008 and 
2009 reflects utilization of funds from prior year bond proceeds.   
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Proprietary Funds.  Dakota County proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Net assets restricted for equipment replacement of the Geographic Information Systems Enterprise Fund at the end of the year 
amounted to $166,432.  This is a decrease of $31,035 compared to 2008.  The Criminal Justice Information Integration Network 
Fund, had an unrestricted net asset balance at the end of the year of $131,714.  The Employee Services Reserve Internal Service 
Fund, also regarded as a proprietary fund, has no equity balance as the cash balance is offset by a long-term liability.  Other 
factors concerning the finances of these two funds are addressed in the discussion of Dakota County’s business-type activities. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
 Comparison of Original Budget to Final Amended Budget 
 
The difference between the original budget and the final amended budget was an increase of $17,600,532 for expenditures at 
fiscal year end.  The major changes from original to final budget for expenditures may be summarized as follows: 
 

• $5.16 million carry-over of 2008 funds along with a $1.0 million increase in 2009 grant funds to expand the Farmland 
and Natural Area Program to acquire permanent agricultural easements. 

• $2.4 million carry-over in grant funding for implementation of a countywide 800 MHz radio system and homeland 
security initiatives. 

• $6.0 million for 2008 carry-over of unspent Budget Incentive Program (BIP) dollars for all departments. 
• $6.0 million for 2008 carry-over of funds for various grants and unfinished projects, including the jail management 

system, EDMS/Crimes System, fleet capital equipment and election equipment.   
• $4.5 million in budget reductions were made including $3.6 million in salary and benefit savings to adjust for the loss 

of state aid along with lower than expected investment income.   
 
The difference between the original budget and final amended budget for revenue was ($75,354).  This decrease from original to 
final budget for revenues includes: 
 

• $5.0 million decrease in investment income to adjust for lower than anticipated interest rates.   
• $1.7 million decrease in County Program Aid to adjust for state cuts.   
• $2.1 million of taxes were transferred to the General Fund from other county funds as a result of mid-year cuts to travel 

and training, BIP, and salary savings used to offset cuts in County Program Aid and lower than anticipated investment 
income.   

• $2.4 million carryover of 2008 revenues for various programs and grants including CJIIN and Homeland Security 
grants.   

 
The difference between the expenditure increase of $17,600,532 and the revenue decrease of ($75,354) was funded with fund 
balance. 
 
Comparison of Actual Resources to Final Amended Budget 
 
Actual expenditures were $13,295,490 less than budget at fiscal year end.  The difference between actual and budget for 
expenditures may be summarized as follows: 

 
• $6.4 million in unspent Capital Equipment Program (CEP) funds for all departments.   
• $2.4 million in unspent funds for the Farmland and Natural Area Program to acquire permanent agricultural easements. 
• $6.2 million unspent Budget Incentive Program (BIP) funds for all departments. 
• $2.3 million in salaries and employee benefits savings. 
• $1.3 million in unspent grant revenue for HAVA and election equipment.   
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Actual revenues were less than the budget by $5,920,191.  This difference was primarily due to the inability to claim grant funds 
associated with the above expenditure savings along with $2.5 million deficit in interest on investments due to lower than 
anticipated interest rates.    
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets.  Dakota County’s investment in capital assets for its government and business type activities as of December 31, 
2009, amount to $612,627,712 (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, 
improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress.  The total increase in 
the Dakota County investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $33,206,869, or 5.7%. 
 
Major capital asset events during 2009 included the following: 

 
• Acquired land and easements for the Farmland and Natural Area Program for $3,781,345. 
• Worked on a variety of county road construction projects and widening and expansion projects for existing streets and 

bridges; completed projects as of the close of the fiscal year totaled $15,942,784. 
• Acquired land for eventual use as right of way at a cost of $3,826,600.  
• Completed construction of the Robert Trail Library with 2009 expenditures of $474,014 and total project expenditures 

of $7,229,743.   
• Began construction of the Empire Transportation Facility with expenditures through the end of 2009 of $507,666.   

 
 

Dakota County's Capital Assets 

 Governmental  Business-type  
 activities activities Total 
 2009   2008 2009  2008 2009   2008 
Land  $   164,322,499   $   156,443,063 $               -  $               -  $   164,322,499   $   156,443,063 
Buildings       137,485,389        129,314,109 -                   -       137,485,389   $   129,314,109 
Machinery and equipment         23,552,147          13,327,544 -                   -         23,552,147   $     13,327,544 
Infrastructure       207,170,370        197,959,613 -                   -       207,170,370   $   197,959,613 
Improvements other than 
buildings           3,087,148            2,467,354 -                   -           3,087,148   $       2,467,354 
Construction in progress         77,010,159          79,909,160 -                   -         77,010,159   $     79,909,160 

Total  $   612,627,712   $   579,420,843   $               -  $               -  $   612,627,712   $   579,420,843 
 
Additional information on Dakota County’s capital assets may be found in note III D of this report. 
 
Long-term Debt.  At the end of 2009, Dakota County had total bonded debt outstanding of $97,775,000.  This is a decrease of 
$12,650,000 during the current fiscal year.  The only factor in this decrease was the retirement of bond principal.  Current and 
future county tax levies plus fund balance are used to finance the entire bonded indebtedness. 
 
Dakota County maintains a “Aaa” rating from Moody’s Investor Services and a “AA+” rating from Standard & Poor’s for 
general obligation debt. 
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Dakota County's Outstanding Debt 
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds 

   
 Governmental 
 activities 
 2009  2008 

General obligation bonds $97,775,000 $110,425,000 
 
Total $97,775,000 $110,425,000 

 
 
State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a county can incur to no more than 3% of the market value of taxable 
property in the county.  Based on the calculation, the current debt limitation for Dakota County is $1,230,189,639, which is 
significantly in excess of Dakota County’s outstanding general obligation debt of $97,775,000.  The net bonded debt per capita 
is $164. 
 
Additional information on Dakota County’s long-term debt may be found in note III F beginning on page 66 of this report. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 

• The unemployment rate for Dakota County as of April, 2010 is 6.4%, which is a decrease from a rate of 7.3% a year 
ago.  This compares favorably to both the state and national average unemployment rate of 7.0% and 9.5% respectively. 

• Dakota County’s property tax base will continue to decline through 2011 due to decreasing property values.  The 2011 
tax base will be 6.5% lower than 2010.     

• The State’s budget problems will continue to create pressure for local budgets, both because of direct reductions in 
funding in the near term and the uncertainty of funding levels in the future.  The continued long-time imbalance in 
revenues and spending in the State’s budget makes state aid a less reliable funding source for the County.   

• State imposed levy limits will remain in place through 2011, and with the limit pegged to an inflation index, the level of 
property tax increase allowed by state law (before claims for specific special levy authority) is likely to be less then 
2.0% for 2011.  

 
On December 15, 2009, the Dakota County Board of Commissioners approved the 2010 budget for $368.0 million.  This is an 
overall increase of $23.1 million or 6.7%.  This increase in the overall budget is driven by a $36.8 million increase in the Capital 
Improvement Program, which more than offsets the $13.7 million decline in the operating budget.   
 
The 2010 total property tax levy is $128.4 million, which is equal to the 2009 levy, or a 0% change.  Additionally, as a means of 
helping manage the risk of state aid reductions, the adopted budget repositioned property tax levy to include more levy in the 
operating budget (7.5% increase) and less in the capital budget (4.1% decrease), while also splitting State county program aid 
between operating and capital budgets.   
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Dakota County’s finances for all those with an interest in the 
government’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to the Financial Services Department, 1590 Highway 55, Hastings, MN 55033 or contact us via 
email at finance@co.dakota.mn.us or visit our web site at www.dakotacounty.us. 

mailto:finance@co.dakota.mn.us
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2009

Assets

  Cash and pooled investments $ 220,107,876    $ 227,466           $ 220,335,342    $ 42,281,104      $ 1,447,643        
  Petty cash and change funds 18,545             -                   18,545             -                   -                   
  Cash with escrow agent 25,866,170      -                   25,866,170      -                   -                   
  Investments -                   -                   -                   16,932,410      -                   
  Taxes receivable
    Current - net -                   -                   -                   5,487,667        72,328             
    Prior - net 3,831,711        -                   3,831,711        -                   662                  
  Accounts receivable - net 2,147,751        4,000               2,151,751        890,158           -                   
  Note receivable -                   -                   -                   32,866,736      -                   
  Accrued interest receivable 693,862           -                   693,862           563,620           -                   
  Due from other governments 28,224,749      66,680             28,291,429      6,351,299        10,350             
  Inventories 1,060,821        -                   1,060,821        -                   -                   
  Prepaid items 103,320           -                   103,320           305,961           -                   
  Restricted assets
    Cash and pooled investments -                   -                   -                   27,923,449      -                   
    Accrued interest receivable-temporary -                   -                   -                   281                  -                   
  Deferred charges 517,231           -                   517,231           556,230           -                   
  Investment in joint venture -                   -                   -                   8,636,847        -                   
  Lease receivable 7,113,320        -                   7,113,320        -                   -                   
  Capital assets 
    Non-depreciable 241,332,658    -                   241,332,658    29,965,223      -                   

Depreciable - net of accumulated    Depreciable - net of accumulated
     depreciation 371,295,054    -                   371,295,054    82,017,565      -                   

      Total Assets $ 902,313,068    $ 298,146           $ 902,611,214    $ 254,778,550    $ 1,530,983        

Liabilities

  Accounts payable $ 7,841,162        $ -                   $ 7,841,162        $ 4,099,586        $ 45,092             
  Salaries payable 3,772,896        -                   3,772,896        -                   -                   
  Contracts payable 1,309,684        -                   1,309,684        -                   -                   
  Due to other governments 4,471,593        -                   4,471,593        715,006           372,369           
  Accrued interest payable 1,771,609        -                   1,771,609        1,348,877        -                   
  Deferred revenue - unearned 11,147,377      -                   11,147,377      13,415,698      -                   
  Compensated absences
    Due within one year 384,114           -                   384,114           389,933           -                   
    Due in more than one year 19,608,785      -                   19,608,785      290,882           -                   
  Claims and judgments payable
    Due within one year 185,814           -                   185,814           -                   -                   
    Due in more than one year 696,253           -                   696,253           -                   -                   
  General obligation bonds payable
    Due within one year 8,715,000        -                   8,715,000        2,685,000        -                   
    Due in more than one year 89,578,352      -                   89,578,352      53,178,652      -                   
  OPEB liability
    Due in more than one year 3,096,082        -                   3,096,082        -                   -                   
  Notes payable
    Due within one year -                   -                   -                   3,542,323        -                   
    Due in more than one year -                   -                   -                   3,897,550        -                   

      Total Liabilities $ 152,578,721    $ -                   $ 152,578,721    $ 83,563,507      $ 417,461           

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Primary Government
Community Vermillion

Governmental Business-Type Development River
Activities Activities Total Agency Watershed

Component Units

DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2009

Net Assets

  Invested in capital assets - net of
   related debt $ 545,729,953    $ -                   $ 545,729,953    $ 67,422,313      $ -                   
  Restricted for
    Capital projects -                   -                   -                   11,043,093      -                   
    Debt service 5,110,492        -                   5,110,492        -                   -                   
    Equipment replacement 749,895           166,432           916,327           -                   -                   
    Federal grants -                   -                   -                   13,159,450      -                   
    Tax increment -                   -                   -                   4,372,928        -                   
    HOPE program -                   -                   -                   12,596,648      -                   
  Unrestricted 198,144,007    131,714           198,275,721    62,620,611      1,113,522        

      Total Net Assets $ 749,734,347    $ 298,146         $ 750,032,493  $ 171,215,043   $ 1,113,522      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital Primary Government Community Vermillion
Fees, Charges, Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Development River

Expenses Fines, and Other Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Agency Watershed

Functions/Programs

  Primary government
    Governmental activities
      General government $      48,513,659 $              7,507,730 $              3,123,481 $                       -   $      (37,882,448) $                      -   $      (37,882,448)
      Public safety      37,363,437                3,214,768                8,948,372                           -        (25,200,297)                      -        (25,200,297)
      Highways and streets      24,016,682                1,528,495              24,992,562            10,568,802       13,073,177                      -         13,073,177 
      Sanitation        5,476,281                6,528,605                   321,394                           -           1,373,718                      -           1,373,718 
      Human services      85,401,690                6,474,404              47,133,328                           -        (31,793,958)                      -        (31,793,958)
      Health      14,371,483                5,632,467                5,712,664                           -          (3,026,352)                      -          (3,026,352)
      Culture and recreation      19,746,598                1,730,132                   941,566                           -        (17,074,900)                      -        (17,074,900)
      Conservation of natural resources        4,560,051                     27,492                3,827,241                           -             (705,318)                      -             (705,318)
      Economic development      10,540,298                            -                  9,396,842                           -          (1,143,456)                      -          (1,143,456)
      Interest        4,360,037                            -                              -                             -          (4,360,037)                      -          (4,360,037)

    Total governmental activities $    254,350,216 $            32,644,093 $          104,397,450 $        10,568,802 $    (106,739,871) $                      -   $    (106,739,871)

B i t ti iti

Component Units

    Business-type activities
      Geographic Information System             50,556                   19,521                          -                         -                       -               (31,035)             (31,035)
      Criminal Justice Information Integration                    -                   131,714                          -                         -                       -               131,714            131,714 

      Total business-type activities $             50,556 $                 151,235 $                          -   $                       -   $                     -   $             100,679 $            100,679 

      Total primary government $    254,400,772 $            32,795,328 $         104,397,450 $       10,568,802 $   (106,739,871) $            100,679 $   (106,639,192)

  Component units
    Community Development Agency $      38,099,898 $            14,405,428 $            22,906,224 $          1,041,631 $           253,385 $                    -   
    Vermillion River Watershed        1,245,246                          -                     53,997                       -                      -        (1,191,249)

      Total component units $      39,345,144 $            14,405,428 $           22,960,221 $         1,041,631 $          253,385 $     (1,191,249)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital Primary Government Community Vermillion
Fees, Charges, Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Development River

Expenses Fines, and Other Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Agency Watershed

Component Units

General Revenues
  Property taxes $     126,986,839 $                      -   $     126,986,839 $        7,848,758 $        1,023,239 
  Gravel taxes            451,950                      -              451,950                    -                      -   
  Mortgage registry and deed tax            408,750                      -              408,750                    -                      -   
  Tax increment financing                     -                        -                       -          3,384,616                    -   
  Taxes - other         1,698,801                      -           1,698,801                    -                      -   
  Gifts and contributions - Unrestricted              54,260                      -                54,260                    -                      -   
  Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs       21,681,301                      -         21,681,301                    -               87,084 
  Investment income         3,981,969                      -           3,981,969        1,004,807             20,541 
  Miscellaneous         1,951,035                      -           1,951,035                    -                1,701 
  Gain on sale of capital assets              84,520                      -                84,520                    -                      -   

    Total general revenues and special items $     157,299,425 $                      -   $     157,299,425 $      12,238,181 $        1,132,565 

  Change in net assets $       50,559,554 $             100,679 $       50,660,233 $      12,491,566 $           (58,684)

Net Assets - Beginning     699,174,793             197,467     699,372,260    158,723,477        1,172,206 

Net Assets - Ending $    749,734,347 $            298,146 $    750,032,493 $   171,215,043 $       1,113,522 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

Other Total
Community County Debt Capital Governmental Governmental

General Highway Services Parks Service Projects Funds Funds

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 75,845,665       $ 773,115           $ 56,885,090      $ 10,247,703      $ 8,269,348        $ 16,558,966      $ 31,528,122      $ 200,108,009    
Petty cash and change funds 8,345                -                   6,790               1,100               -                   -                   2,310               18,545             
Cash with escrow agent -                    -                   -                   -                   25,866,170      -                   -                   25,866,170      
Taxes receivable
  Prior 1,348,722         346,018           1,463,466        108,011           51,222             213,964           300,308           3,831,711        
Accounts receivable 284,437            139,983           812,497           10,181             -                   1,750               898,903           2,147,751        
Accrued interest receivable 693,862            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   693,862           
Due from other funds 743,365            407,108           194,020           460,144           -                   576,837           115,442           2,496,916        
Due from other governments 2,912,956         10,143,295      14,415,933      663,234           -                   -                   89,331             28,224,749      
Advance to other funds 1,872,670         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,872,670        
Prepaid items 102,214            1,106               -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   103,320           
Inventories 514,963            545,858           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,060,821        
Lease receivable 7,113,320         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   7,113,320        

      Total Assets $ 91,440,519       $ 12,356,483    $ 73,777,796    $ 11,490,373    $ 34,186,740     $ 17,351,517    $ 32,934,416    $ 273,537,844  

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 2,549,794         $ 2,234,776        $ 2,393,907        $ 201,167           $ -                   $ 85,147             $ 376,371           $ 7,841,162        
  Salaries payable 1,381,059         183,114           1,789,534        71,507             -                   -                   347,682           3,772,896        
  Claims and judgments payable-current 63,406              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   63,406             
  Contracts payable -                    1,199,816        -                   60,848             -                   49,020             -                   1,309,684        
  Due to other funds 3,170,869         469,011           848,968           37,202             879,409           -                   180,571           5,586,030        
  Due to other governments 1,941,765         76,545             2,324,458        14,318             -                   767                  113,740           4,471,593        
  Deferred revenue - unavailable 974,945            842,570           4,947,994        507,895           40,708             172,801           241,396           7,728,309        
  Deferred revenue - unearned 7,701,368         126,578           1,007,302        1,626,475        -                   -                   685,654           11,147,377      
  Advance from other funds -                    -                   -                   1,872,670        -                   -                   -                   1,872,670        

    Total Liabilities $ 17,783,206       $ 5,132,410        $ 13,312,163      $ 4,392,082        $ 920,117           $ 307,735           $ 1,945,414        $ 43,793,127      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

Other Total
Community County Debt Capital Governmental Governmental

General Highway Services Parks Service Projects Funds Funds

Liabilities and Fund Balances
(Continued)

Fund Balances
  Reserved for
    Encumbrances $ -                    $ 3,021,044        $ -                   $ 1,531,778        $ -                   $ 321,927           $ -                   $ 4,874,749        
    Advances to other funds 1,872,670         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,872,670        
    Inventories 510,326            545,858           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,056,184        
    Recorder's equipment purchases 749,895            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   749,895           
    Debt service -                    -                   -                   -                   33,266,623      -                   -                   33,266,623      
    Farmland and Natural Area Program 5,305,533         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   5,305,533        
    Spring Lake Park -                    -                   -                   39,327             -                   -                   -                   39,327             
    Victim Witness 53,010              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   53,010             
  Unreserved
    Designated for future expenditures 1,449,039         87,536             390,512           86,313             -                   -                   -                   2,013,400        
    Designated for cash flows 23,701,736       3,569,635        20,943,921      1,538,818        -                   692,174           -                   50,446,284      
    Designated for capital improvements -                    -                   -                   3,900,955        -                   16,029,681      -                   19,930,636      

Designated for contingencies 2 442 324 2 442 324    Designated for contingencies 2,442,324         -                 -                 -                 -                  -                 -                 2,442,324      
    Designated for petty cash funds 8,345                -                   6,790               1,100               -                   -                   -                   16,235             
    Designated for capital equipment 13,335,212       -                   37,742             -                   -                   -                   -                   13,372,954      
    Designated for OPEB 10,088,837       -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   10,088,837      
    Designated for budget incentive program 6,406,233         -                   1,740,506        -                   -                   -                   -                   8,146,739        
    Designated for budget stabilization fund 7,734,153         -                   37,346,162      -                   -                   -                   -                   45,080,315      
    Undesignated -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
  Unreserved, reported in nonmajor
    Special revenue funds -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   30,989,002      30,989,002      

    Total Fund Balances $ 73,657,313       $ 7,224,073        $ 60,465,633      $ 7,098,291        $ 33,266,623      $ 17,043,782      $ 30,989,002      $ 229,744,717    

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 91,440,519       $ 12,356,483    $ 73,777,796    $ 11,490,373    $ 34,186,740     $ 17,351,517    $ 32,934,416    $ 273,537,844  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 229,744,717     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different
 because:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental activities 
 are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 612,627,712       

 
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
 and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds. 7,728,309          

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
 current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

General obligation bonds $ (97,775,000)       
Unamortized premiums on G.O. Bonds (786,960)            
Unamortized discounts on G.O. Bonds 268,608             
Claims and judgments payable (818,661)            
Accrued interest payable (1,771,609)         
Deferred debt issuance charges 517,231             (100,366,391)     

Net assets of governmental activities $ 749,734,347     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Other Total
Community County Debt Capital Governmental Governmental

General Highway Services Parks Service Projects Funds Funds

Revenues
  Taxes $ 39,084,148      $ 14,001,080      $ 50,326,609      $ 3,871,829        $ 2,004,437        $ 7,480,626        $ 12,426,265      $ 129,194,994    
  Licenses and permits 34,350             152,420           -                  82,423             -                  -                  862,226           1,131,419        
  Intergovernmental 25,537,389      39,334,983      69,075,232      1,171,053        4,382,800        298,553           3,979,927        143,779,937    
  Charges for services 11,731,763      1,270,331        12,985,895      738,678           -                  -                  6,700,517        33,427,184      
  Fines and forfeits 46,893             -                  -                  10,857             -                  -                  95,093             152,843           
  Gifts and contributions 5,188               -                  -                  471                  -                  -                  49,101             54,760             
  Investment earnings 2,557,317        -                  -                  797                  1,137,235        -                  56,610             3,751,959        
  Miscellaneous 2,909,162        312,562           1,587,761        9,385               -                  75,841             368,470           5,263,181        

      Total Revenues $ 81,906,210      $ 55,071,376      $ 133,975,497    $ 5,885,493        $ 7,524,472        $ 7,855,020        $ 24,538,209      $ 316,756,277    

Expenditures
  Current
    General government $ 60,212,770      $ -                  $ 640,389           $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ 505,914           $ 61,359,073      
    Public safety 19,781,889      -                  17,612,947      -                  -                  -                  -                  37,394,836      

Highways and streets 1 569 864 43 604 873 - - - - - 45 174 737    Highways and streets 1,569,864        43,604,873    -                -                -                 -                -                45,174,737    
    Sanitation -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  7,304,309        7,304,309        
    Human services -                  -                  87,426,542      -                  -                  -                  -                  87,426,542      
    Health -                  -                  14,379,616      -                  -                  -                  -                  14,379,616      
    Culture and recreation 1,046,705        -                  -                  5,416,398        -                  -                  12,762,146      19,225,249      
    Conservation of natural resources 4,189,819        -                  377,374           -                  -                  -                  -                  4,567,193        
    Economic development 2,677,555        -                  5,940,050        -                  -                  -                  1,846,503        10,464,108      
  Capital outlay -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  2,153,718        -                  2,153,718        
  Debt service
    Principal -                  -                  -                  -                  12,650,000      -                  -                  12,650,000      
    Interest -                  -                  -                  -                  4,519,421        -                  -                  4,519,421        
    Administrative - fiscal charges -                  -                  -                  -                  2,100               -                  -                  2,100               

      Total Expenditures $ 89,478,602      $ 43,604,873      $ 126,376,918    $ 5,416,398        $ 17,171,521      $ 2,153,718        $ 22,418,872      $ 306,620,902    

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (7,572,392)       $ 11,466,503      $ 7,598,579        $ 469,095           $ (9,647,049)       $ 5,701,302        $ 2,119,337        $ 10,135,375      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Other Total
Community County Debt Capital Governmental Governmental

General Highway Services Parks Service Projects Funds Funds

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ 241,760           $ -                  $ 1,408               $ -                  $ 9,238,490        $ -                  $ 73,372             $ 9,555,030        
  Transfers out (651,452)          -                  (241,193)          -                  -                  (8,661,818)       (567)                (9,555,030)       
  Proceeds from sale of assets 100,919           -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  100,919           

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (308,773)          $ -                  $ (239,785)          $ -                  $ 9,238,490        $ (8,661,818)       $ 72,805             $ 100,919           

  Change in Fund Balance $ (7,881,165)       $ 11,466,503      $ 7,358,794        $ 469,095           $ (408,559)          $ (2,960,516)       $ 2,192,142        $ 10,236,294      

Fund Balance - January 1 81,372,689      (4,390,876)       53,106,839      6,629,196        33,675,182      20,004,298      28,796,860      219,194,188    
Increase (decrease) in reserved
 for inventories 165,789           148,446           -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  314,235           

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 73,657,313      $ 7,224,073      $ 60,465,633    $ 7,098,291      $ 33,266,623     $ 17,043,782    $ 30,989,002    $ 229,744,717  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 10,236,294         

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
 different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However, in
 the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
 their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Expenditures for general capital assets, infrastructure, and other
 related capital assets $ 46,133,674         
Current year depreciation (12,660,874)        33,472,800         

In the statement of activities, only the gain or loss on the disposal of 
 capital assets is reported, whereas, in the governmental funds, 
 the proceeds from the disposal increase financial resources.  Therefore,
 the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the net
 book value of the disposed capital assets. (265,931)            

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
 financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (6,308,787)          

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Principal repayments
General obligation bonds 12,650,000         

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
 use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
 expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in accrued interest payable $ 222,968              
Amortization of premiums and bond issuance costs 168,526              
Change in claims and judgments payable 69,449                
Change in inventories 314,235              775,178              

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 50,559,554       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 39,228,410       $ 40,146,193       $ 39,084,148       $ (1,062,045)        
  Licenses and permits 15,048              15,048              34,350              19,302              
  Intergovernmental 20,024,160       23,341,191       25,537,389       2,196,198         
  Charges for services 11,787,301       11,306,743       11,731,763       425,020            
  Fines and forfeits 45,000              45,000              46,893              1,893                
  Gifts and contributions -                    -                    5,188                5,188                
  Investment earnings 10,014,000       5,014,000         2,557,317         (2,456,683)        
  Miscellaneous 6,787,836         7,958,226         2,909,162         (5,049,064)        

      Total Revenues $ 87,901,755       $ 87,826,401       $ 81,906,210       $ (5,920,191)        

Expenditures
  Current
    General government
      Commissioners $ 749,475            $ 830,180            $ 647,080            $ 183,100            
      Courts services 229,733            229,733            309,443            (79,710)             
      County administration 1,421,935         1,679,072         1,117,776         561,296            
      OMB division administration/OPED 2,759,154         3,199,603         2,518,838         680,765            
      Public service and revenue admin 1,017,638        1,080,256       873,359          206,897                 Public service and revenue admin 1,017,638        1,080,256       873,359          206,897           
      Service and license centers 1,830,177         1,891,356         1,669,759         221,597            
      County treasurer 4,348,354         5,436,795         4,399,793         1,037,002         
      County assessor 3,556,921         3,692,967         3,300,528         392,439            
      Accounting and auditing 2,854,419         2,987,098         2,514,165         472,933            
      Information technology 9,519,041         14,317,949       10,324,988       3,992,961         
      Operations management services 15,289,300       17,395,401       13,397,374       3,998,027         
      Employee relations 2,694,683         2,830,777         2,353,056         477,721            
      Attorney 9,063,663         9,215,273         8,542,990         672,283            
      Surveyor 861,981            880,283            866,244            14,039              
      Physical development administration 2,069,537         2,343,465         1,650,068         693,397            
      Communications 972,190            971,676            773,505            198,171            
      GIS 945,077            951,957            920,635            31,322              
      County-wide operations 904,740            439,411            4,033,169         (3,593,758)        

    Total general government $ 61,088,018       $ 70,373,252       $ 60,212,770       $ 10,160,482       

    Public safety
      Sheriff $ 18,976,030       $ 20,663,643       $ 19,237,232       $ 1,426,411         
      Coroner 494,382            544,657            544,657            -                    

    Total public safety $ 19,470,412       $ 21,208,300       $ 19,781,889       $ 1,426,411         

    Highway and streets
      Other-highway and streets $ 831,000            $ 907,589            $ 1,569,864         $ (662,275)           

    Total highway and streets $ 831,000            $ 907,589            $ 1,569,864         $ (662,275)           

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Expenditures
  Current (Continued)
    Culture and recreation
      Historical society $ 138,036            $ 138,036            $ 138,036            $ -                    
      County fair 135,285            135,285            135,285            -                    
      Parks 396,000            736,705            761,171            (24,466)             
      County library -                    -                    12,213              (12,213)             

    Total culture and recreation $ 669,321            $ 1,010,026         $ 1,046,705         $ (36,679)             

    Conservation of natural resources
      Soil and water conservation $ 297,222            $ 297,222            $ 297,222            $ -                    
      Farmland and natural area program 140,032            6,300,148         3,892,597         2,407,551         

    Total conservation of natural
     resources $ 437,254            $ 6,597,370         $ 4,189,819         $ 2,407,551         

    Economic development
      Administration $ 2,677,555         $ 2,677,555         $ 2,677,555         $ -                    

     Total economic development $ 2,677,555         $ 2,677,555         $ 2,677,555         $ -                    

      Total Expenditures $ 85,173,560       $ 102,774,092     $ 89,478,602       $ 13,295,490       

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ 2,728,195         $ (14,947,691)      $ (7,572,392)        $ 7,375,299         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ 5,688                $ 241,760            $ 241,760            $ -                    
  Transfers out -                    (651,452)           (651,452)           -                    
  Proceeds from sale of assets -                    95,937              100,919            4,982                

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ 5,688                $ (313,755)           $ (308,773)           $ 4,982                

  Change in Fund Balance $ 2,733,883         $ (15,261,446)      $ (7,881,165)        $ 7,380,281         

Fund Balance - January 1 81,372,689       81,372,689       81,372,689       -                    
Increase (decrease) in reserved for
 inventories -                    -                    165,789            165,789            

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 84,106,572      $ 66,111,243     $ 73,657,313     $ 7,546,070        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

HIGHWAY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 12,638,566       $ 12,745,175       $ 14,001,080       $ 1,255,905         
  Licenses and permits 140,000            140,000            152,420            12,420              
  Intergovernmental 35,535,432       81,406,556       39,334,983       (42,071,573)     
  Charges for services 1,270,331         1,270,331         1,270,331         -                   
  Miscellaneous 213,769            494,487            312,562            (181,925)          

      Total Revenues $ 49,798,098      $ 96,056,549     $ 55,071,376     $ (40,985,173)    

Expenditures
  Current
    Highway and streets
      Administration $ 296,875            $ 328,453            $ 290,519            $ 37,934              
      Maintenance 5,219,286         5,292,009         4,900,176         391,833            
      Construction 46,913,602       90,115,466       38,414,178       51,701,288       

      Total Expenditures $ 52,429,763      $ 95,735,928     $ 43,604,873     $ 52,131,055      

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (2,631,665)      $ 320,621          $ 11,466,503     $ 11,145,882      

Fund Balance - January 1 (4,390,876)      (4,390,876)     (4,390,876)     -                  
Increase (decrease) in reserved for
 inventories -                  -                 148,446           148,446           

Fund Balance - December 31 $ (7,022,541)      $ (4,070,255)     $ 7,224,073       $ 11,294,328      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 53,427,156       $ 52,165,989       $ 50,326,609       $ (1,839,380)        
  Intergovernmental 74,755,021       79,917,943       69,075,232       (10,842,711)      
  Charges for services 10,098,011       12,512,694       12,985,895       473,201            
  Miscellaneous 2,395,447         2,221,687         1,587,761         (633,926)           

      Total Revenues $ 140,675,635     $ 146,818,313     $ 133,975,497     $ (12,842,816)      

Expenditures
  Current
    General government
      Veterans service officer $ 646,395            $ 679,480            $ 640,389            $ 39,091              

    Total general government $ 646,395            $ 679,480            $ 640,389            $ 39,091              

    Public safety
      Community corrections $ 19,429,982       $ 20,005,575       $ 17,612,947       $ 2,392,628         

    Total public safety $ 19,429,982       $ 20,005,575       $ 17,612,947       $ 2,392,628         

    Human services
      Income maintenance $ 36,554,816       $ 37,402,069       $ 24,387,847       $ 13,014,222       
      Social services 67,467,973       68,484,199       63,038,695       5,445,504         

    Total human services $ 104,022,789     $ 105,886,268     $ 87,426,542       $ 18,459,726       

    Health
      Public health $ 15,177,968       $ 16,470,044       $ 14,379,616       $ 2,090,428         

    Total health $ 15,177,968       $ 16,470,044       $ 14,379,616       $ 2,090,428         

    Conservation
      Cooperative extension $ 393,857            $ 447,533            $ 377,374            $ 70,159              

    Total conservation $ 393,857            $ 447,533            $ 377,374            $ 70,159              

    Economic development
      Community development $ 3,544,168         $ 6,982,110         $ 5,940,050         $ 1,042,060         

    Total economic development $ 3,544,168         $ 6,982,110         $ 5,940,050         $ 1,042,060         

    Total Expenditures $ 143,215,159     $ 150,471,010     $ 126,376,918     $ 24,094,092       

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (2,539,524)        $ (3,652,697)        $ 7,598,579         $ 11,251,276       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ -                    $ 1,408                $ 1,408                $ -                    
  Transfers out (5,688)               (241,193)           (241,193)           -                    

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ (5,688)               $ (239,785)           $ (239,785)           $ -                    

  Change in Fund Balance $ (2,545,212)        $ (3,892,482)        $ 7,358,794         $ 11,251,276       

Fund Balance - January 1 53,106,839       53,106,839       53,106,839       -                    

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 50,561,627      $ 49,214,357     $ 60,465,633     $ 11,251,276      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COUNTY PARKS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 4,014,482         $ 4,005,397         $ 3,871,829         $ (133,568)          
  Licenses and permits 49,300              49,300              82,423              33,123              
  Intergovernmental 1,195,000         6,473,093         1,171,053         (5,302,040)       
  Charges for services 679,881            691,979            738,678            46,699              
  Fines and forfeits -                   -                   10,857              10,857              
  Gifts and contributions -                   -                   471                   471                   
  Investment earnings -                   -                   797                   797                   
  Miscellaneous 12,098              325                   9,385                9,060                

      Total Revenues $ 5,950,761        $ 11,220,094     $ 5,885,493       $ (5,334,601)      

Expenditures
  Current
    Culture and recreation
      Parks $ 6,612,135         $ 16,312,806       $ 5,416,398         $ 10,896,408       

    Total Expenditures $ 6,612,135        $ 16,312,806     $ 5,416,398       $ 10,896,408      

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (661,374)         $ (5,092,712)     $ 469,095           $ 5,561,807        

Fund Balance - January 1 6,629,196        6,629,196       6,629,196       -                  

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 5,967,822        $ 1,536,484       $ 7,098,291       $ 5,561,807        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY  FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2009

Private-Purpose Agency
Trusts Funds

Assets

  Cash and pooled investments $ 4,972,871         $ 30,310,201         
  Departmental cash -                   196,931              
  Accounts receivable -                   64,054                
  Due from other governments 1,019,875         146,397              

      Total Assets $ 5,992,746       $ 30,717,583        

Liabilities

  Accounts payable $ 98,898              $ 1,492,744           
  Salaries payable -                   26,938                
  Accrued expenses 76,448              -                     
  Due to other governments 4,653,140         29,197,901         
  Advance from other governments 754,083            -                     

      Total Liabilities $ 5,582,569       $ 30,717,583        

Net Assets

  Net assets, held in trust for other purposes $ 410,177            

      Total Net Assets $ 410,177          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Private-Purpose
Trusts

ADDITIONS:

State Grants
  Mn Dept of Trial Courts $ 3,172,531         
  Mn Pollution Control Agency 792,021            
Payments from other governments 303,510            
Other agencies 17,400              
Miscellaneous 6,527                
Investment earnings:
  Interest 32,203              

Total additions $ 4,324,192         

DEDUCTIONS:

Judicial District expenses $ 3,172,531         
Solid waste expenses 1,119,010         
Emergency preparedness expenses 61,695              

Total deductions $ 4 353 236Total deductions $ 4,353,236         

Change in net assets $ (29,044)             

Net assets - January 1 439,221            

Net assets - December 31 $ 410,177            

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Acturial Value of Accrued Actuarial Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of

Valuation Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date ( a ) ( b ) ( b-a ) ( a/b ) ( c ) ( ( b-a ) / c )

1/1/2006 $0 $10,103,661 $10,103,661 0.00% $101,860,878 9.92%
1/1/2008 $0 $14,588,881 $14,588,881 0.00% $112,903,961 12.92%

See Note IV, I, Post-Employment Benefits, for more information.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 2,000,000         $ 2,000,000         $ 2,004,437         $ 4,437                
  Intergovernmental revenue 4,382,801         4,382,801         4,382,800         (1)                     
  Charges for services 576,672            -                   -                   -                   
  Investment earnings 494,125            494,125            1,137,235         643,110            

      Total Revenues $ 7,453,598        $ 6,876,926       $ 7,524,472       $ 647,546           

Expenditures
    Debt service
      Principal $ 12,650,000       $ 12,650,000       $ 12,650,000       $ -                   
      Interest 4,519,422         4,519,422         4,519,421         1                       
      Administrative - fiscal charges 15,064              15,064              2,100                12,964              

    Total Expenditures $ 17,184,486      $ 17,184,486     $ 17,171,521     $ 12,965             

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (9,730,888)      $ (10,307,560)   $ (9,647,049)     $ 660,511           

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ 8,661,819         $ 9,238,491         $ 9,238,490         $ (1)                     

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ 8,661,819        $ 9,238,491       $ 9,238,490       $ (1)                    

  Change in Fund Balance $ (1,069,069)      $ (1,069,069)     $ (408,559)        $ 660,510           

Fund Balance - January 1 33,675,182      33,675,182     33,675,182     -                  

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 32,606,113      $ 32,606,113     $ 33,266,623     $ 660,510           
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 7,736,187         $ 7,736,187         $ 7,480,626         $ (255,561)          
  Intergovernmental 26,000              26,000              298,553            272,553            
  Miscellaneous -                   -                   75,841              75,841              

      Total Revenues $ 7,762,187        $ 7,762,187       $ 7,855,020       $ 92,833             

Expenditures
  Current
    Capital outlay
      Capital outlay $ 12,280,383       $ 12,886,850       $ 2,153,718         $ 10,733,132       

    Total capital outlay $ 12,280,383      $ 12,886,850     $ 2,153,718       10,733,132      

    Total Expenditures $ 12,280,383      $ 12,886,850     $ 2,153,718       $ 10,733,132      

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (4,518,196)      $ (5,124,663)     $ 5,701,302       $ 10,825,965      

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers out $ (8,661,819)       $ (8,661,819)       $ (8,661,818)       $ 1                       

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ (8,661,819)      $ (8,661,819)     $ (8,661,818)     $ 1                      

  Change in Fund Balance $ (13,180,015)    $ (13,786,482)   $ (2,960,516)     $ 10,825,966      

Fund Balance - January 1 20,004,298      20,004,298     20,004,298     -                  

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 6,824,283        $ 6,217,816       $ 17,043,782     $ 10,825,966      
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

Special Revenue Funds Total Nonmajor
County Environmental Regional Law Attorney Governmental
Library Management Rail Library Forfeiture Funds

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 1,978,760           $ 25,445,490    $ 2,664,153        $ 1,134,948    $ 304,771        $ 31,528,122      
Petty cash and change funds 2,250                  -                 -                   60               -                2,310               
Taxes receivable
  Prior 299,799              -                 509                  -              -                300,308           
Accounts receivable 65,765                736,541         61,511             35,086         -                898,903           
Due from other funds 87,411                28,031           -                   -              -                115,442           
Due from other governments 6,018                  329                82,984             -              -                89,331             

      Total Assets $ 2,440,003           $ 26,210,391  $ 2,809,157      $ 1,170,094  $ 304,771        $ 32,934,416    

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 134,762              $ 162,352         $ 67,693             $ 11,564         $ -                $ 376,371           
  Salaries payable 269,832              71,487           -                   6,363          -                347,682           
  Due to other funds 83,790                42,232           39,907             1,329          13,313          180,571           
  Due to other governments 42,390                70,441           -                   909             -                113,740           
  Deferred revenue - unavailable 241,396              -                 -                   -              -                241,396           
  Deferred revenue - unearned -                     685,654         -                   -              -                685,654           

    Total Liabilities $ 772,170              $ 1,032,166      $ 107,600           $ 20,165         $ 13,313          $ 1,945,414        

Fund Balances
  Unreserved  Unreserved
    Designated for future expenditures $ -                     $ 25,178,225    $ 2,701,557        $ 432,869       $ 291,458        $ 28,604,109      
    Designated for cash flows 1,504,526           -                 -                   482,000       -                1,986,526        
    Designated for capital improvements -                     -                 -                   235,000       -                235,000           
    Designated for petty cash and change funds 2,250                  -                 -                   60               -                2,310               
    Designated for capital equipment 31,961                -                 -                   -              -                31,961             
    Designated for budget incentive program 129,096              -                 -                   -              -                129,096           

    Total Fund Balances $ 1,667,833           $ 25,178,225    $ 2,701,557        $ 1,149,929    $ 291,458        $ 30,989,002      

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,440,003           $ 26,210,391  $ 2,809,157      $ 1,170,094  $ 304,771        $ 32,934,416    
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Special Revenue Funds Total Nonmajor
County Environmental Regional Law Attorney Governmental
Library Management Rail Library Forfeiture Funds

Revenues
  Taxes $ 11,166,296     $ 117,900         $ 1,142,069        $ -               $ -               $ 12,426,265      
  License and permits -                  862,226         -                   -               -               862,226           
  Intergovernmental 1,836,882       1,665,265      452,366           25,414         -               3,979,927        
  Charges for services 700,230          5,527,059      -                   473,228       -               6,700,517        
  Fines and forfeits -                  -                -                   -               95,093         95,093             
  Gifts and contributions 49,101            -                -                   -               -               49,101             
  Investment earnings 3,193              -                53,417             -               -               56,610             
  Miscellaneous 192,173          176,297         -                   -               -               368,470           

      Total Revenues $ 13,947,875     $ 8,348,747      $ 1,647,852        $ 498,642       $ 95,093         $ 24,538,209      

Expenditures
  Current
    General government $ -                  $ -                $ -                   $ 485,432       $ 20,482         $ 505,914           
    Sanitation -                  7,304,309      -                   -               -               7,304,309        
    Culture and recreation 12,762,146     -                -                   -               -               12,762,146      
    Economic development -                  -                1,846,503        -               -               1,846,503        

      Total Expenditures $ 12,762,146     $ 7,304,309      $ 1,846,503        $ 485,432       $ 20,482         $ 22,418,872      

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ 1,185,729       $ 1,044,438      $ (198,651)          $ 13,210         $ 74,611         $ 2,119,337        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ 34,524            $ 38,848         $ -                 $ -             $ -               $ 73,372             Transfers in $ 34,524            $ 38,848         $                  $              $                $ 73,372           
  Transfers out -                  (567)              -                   -               -               (567)                 

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 34,524            $ 38,281           $ -                   $ -               $ -               $ 72,805             

  Net Change in Fund Balance $ 1,220,253       $ 1,082,719      $ (198,651)          $ 13,210         $ 74,611         $ 2,192,142        

Fund Balance - January 1 447,580          24,095,506    2,900,208        1,136,719    216,847       28,796,860      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 1,667,833       $ 25,178,225  $ 2,701,557      $ 1,149,929  $ 291,458       $ 30,989,002    
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COUNTY LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 11,359,834       $ 11,605,694       $ 11,166,296       $ (439,398)          
  Intergovernmental 1,313,799         1,335,199         1,836,882         501,683            
  Charges for services 513,020            513,020            700,230            187,210            
  Gifts and contributions -                   37,327              49,101              11,774              
  Investment earnings -                   -                   3,193                3,193                
  Miscellaneous 96,000              136,952            192,173            55,221              

      Total Revenues $ 13,282,653      $ 13,628,192     $ 13,947,875     $ 319,683           

Expenditures
  Current
    Culture and recreation
      Regional library $ 13,480,038       $ 14,134,734       $ 12,762,146       $ 1,372,588         

    Total Expenditures $ 13,480,038      $ 14,134,734     $ 12,762,146     $ 1,372,588        

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (197,385)         $ (506,542)        $ 1,185,729       $ 1,692,271        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ -                   $ 34,524              $ 34,524              $ -                   

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ -                  $ 34,524            $ 34,524             $ -                  

  Change in Fund Balance $ (197,385)         $ (472,018)        $ 1,220,253       $ 1,692,271        

Fund Balance - January 1 447,580           447,580          447,580           -                  

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 250,195           $ (24,438)          $ 1,667,833       $ 1,692,271        
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 132,161            $ 132,161            $ 117,900            $ (14,261)            
  Licenses and permits 830,470            830,470            862,226            31,756              
  Intergovernmental 1,642,314         2,006,507         1,665,265         (341,242)          
  Charges for services 4,967,539         4,967,539         5,527,059         559,520            
  Miscellaneous 110,122            115,260            176,297            61,037              

      Total Revenues $ 7,682,606        $ 8,051,937       $ 8,348,747       $ 296,810           

Expenditures
  Current
    Sanitation
      Solid waste $ 8,526,132         $ 8,762,704         $ 7,304,309         $ 1,458,395         

    Total Expenditures $ 8,526,132        $ 8,762,704       $ 7,304,309       $ 1,458,395        

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (843,526)         $ (710,767)        $ 1,044,438       $ 1,755,205        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ -                   $ 38,848              $ 38,848              $ -                   
  Transfers out -                   (567)                 (567)                 -                   

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ -                  $ 38,281            $ 38,281             $ -                  

  Change in Fund Balance $ (843,526)         $ (672,486)        $ 1,082,719       $ 1,755,205        

Fund Balance - January 1 24,095,506      24,095,506     24,095,506     -                  

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 23,251,980      $ 23,423,020     $ 25,178,225     $ 1,755,205        
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REGIONAL RAIL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 1,190,516         $ 1,190,516         $ 1,142,069         $ (48,447)            
  Intergovernmental 11,725,752       11,725,752       452,366            (11,273,386)     
  Investment earnings -                   -                   53,417              53,417              

      Total Revenues $ 12,916,268      $ 12,916,268     $ 1,647,852       $ (11,268,416)    

Expenditures
  Current
    Economic development
      Community development $ 11,865,000       $ 11,865,000       $ 1,586,460         $ 10,278,540       
      Administration 1,315,516         1,315,516         260,043            1,055,473         

    Total Expenditures $ 13,180,516      $ 13,180,516     $ 1,846,503       $ 11,334,013      

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (264,248)         $ (264,248)        $ (198,651)        $ 65,597             

  Change in Fund Balance $ (264,248)         $ (264,248)        $ (198,651)        $ 65,597             

Fund Balance - January 1 2,900,208        2,900,208       2,900,208       -                  

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 2,635,960        $ 2,635,960       $ 2,701,557       $ 65,597             
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Geographic
Information

System
Enterprise Fund Totals

Assets

Current assets:
  Cash and pooled investments $ 162,432                 $ 65,034          $ 227,466        
  Accounts receivable (net) 4,000                     -                4,000            
  Due from other governments -                        66,680          66,680          

    Total current assets $ 166,432                 $ 131,714        $ 298,146        

      Total Assets $ 166,432               $ 131,714       $ 298,146      

Net Assets
    Restricted for
      Equipment replacement $ 166,432                 $ -                $ 166,432        

U e t i ted 131 714 131 714

Information
Integration

Network

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

DAKOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA

Criminal
Justice

      Unrestricted -                      131,714       131,714      

    Total Net Assets $ 166,432               $ 131,714       $ 298,146      
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DAKOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Geographic
Information

System
Enterprise Fund Totals

Operating Revenues
  Charges for services $ 19,521            $ 131,714         $ 151,235         

      Total Operating Revenues $ 19,521            $ 131,714         $ 151,235         

Operating Expenses
    Other services and charges $ 50,556            $ -                     $ 50,556           

      Total Operating Expenses $ 50,556            $ -                     $ 50,556           

  Operating income (loss) $ (31,035)           $ 131,714         $ 100,679         

                 Change in Net Assets $ (31,035)           $ 131,714         $ 100,679         

Net Assets - January 1 197,467          -                     197,467         

Net Assets - December 31 $ 166 432 $ 131 714 $ 298 146

Criminal
Justice

Information
Integration

Network

Net Assets - December 31 $ 166,432          $ 131,714         $ 298,146         

89



DAKOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Totals

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
  Receipts from customers and users $ 15,521            $ 65,034             $ 80,555             
  Payments to suppliers (50,557)          -                   (50,557)           

    Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (35,036)            $ 65,034              $ 29,998              

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ (35,036)            $ 65,034              $ 29,998              

Cash and Cash Equivalents at January 1 197,468            -                   197,468            

Cash and Cash Equivalents at December 31 $ 162,432            $ 65,034              $ 227,466            

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
 Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
  Operating income (loss) $ (31,035)            $ 131,714            $ 100,679            

  Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
   provided by (used in) operating activities

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable $ (4 000) $ (66 680) $ (70 680)

System Integration
Enterprise Fund Network

Criminal
Geographic Justice
Information Information

    (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable $ (4,000)            $ (66,680)           $ (70,680)           
    Increase (decrease) in due to other governments (1)                    -                   (1)                     

    Total adjustments $ (4,001)              $ (66,680)            $ (70,681)            

      Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities $ (35,036)            $ 65,034              $ 29,998              
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY  NET ASSETS
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

Rural Solid Waste Domestic
First Judicial Solid Waste Management Preparedness

District Commission Coordination Bd Team     
Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ -                    $ 25,051              $ 4,841,533         $ 106,287            $ 4,972,871           
  Accounts receivable -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      
  Due from other governments 1,019,875         -                    -                    -                    1,019,875           

      Total Assets $ 1,019,875         $ 25,051            $ 4,841,533       $ 106,287            $ 5,992,746         

Liabilities

  Accounts payable $ 1,035                $ 4,383                $ 92,767              $ 713                   $ 98,898                
  Accrued expenses 76,448              -                    -                    -                    76,448                
  Due to other governments 942,392            -                    3,710,700         48                     4,653,140           
  Advance from other governments -                    -                    754,083            -                    754,083              

      Total Liabilities $ 1,019,875         $ 4,383                $ 4,557,550         $ 761                   $ 5,582,569           

Net Assets

  Net assets, held in trust for other purposes $ -                    $ 20,668              $ 283,983            $ 105,526            $ 410,177              

      Total Net Assets $ -                   $ 20,668            $ 283,983          $ 105,526            $ 410,177            $ $ , $ , $ , $ ,
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Rural Solid Waste Domestic Total
First Judicial Solid Waste Management Preparedness Private-

District Commission Coordination Bd Team Purpose
Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund

ADDITIONS:

State Grants
  Mn Dept of Trial Courts $ 3,172,531         $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ 3,172,531         
  Mn Polution Control Agency -                    -                    792,021            -                    792,021            
Payments from other governments -                    -                    237,595            65,915              303,510            
Other agencies -                    17,400              -                    -                    17,400              
Miscellaneous -                    -                    6,492                35                     6,527                
Investment earnings:
  Interest -                    459                   31,744              -                    32,203              

Total additions $ 3,172,531         $ 17,859              $ 1,067,852         $ 65,950              $ 4,324,192         

DEDUCTIONS:

Judical District expense $ 3,172,531         $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ 3,172,531         
Solid waste expenses -                    16,706              1,102,304         -                    1,119,010         
Emergency preparedness expenses -                    -                    -                    61,695              61,695              

Total deductions $ 3,172,531         $ 16,706              $ 1,102,304         $ 61,695              $ 4,353,236         

Change in net assets $ -                    $ 1,153                $ (34,452)             $ 4,255                $ (29,044)             

Net assets - January 1 -                    19,515              318,435            101,271            439,221            

31 $ $ 20 668 $ 283 983 $ 10 26 $ 410 1Net assets - December 31 $ -                   $ 20,668            $ 283,983          $ 105,526            $ 410,177          
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

4-H

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 307,113                    $ 233,305                    $ 207,199                    $ 333,219                    
Accounts receivable 165                           -                               165                           -                               
Due from other governments 1,251                        2,467                        1,568                        2,150                        

$ 308,529                   $ 235,772                  $ 208,932                   $ 335,369                   

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 24,771                      $ 147,900                    $ 165,111                    $ 7,560                        
Due to other governments 283,758                    328,091                    284,040                    327,809                    

$ 308,529                   $ 475,991                  $ 449,151                   $ 335,369                   

AGRICULTURAL CONSERVATION

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 158,040                   $ 76,827                    $ 94,455                     $ 140,412                   Cash and pooled investments $ 158,040                   $ 76,827                    $ 94,455                     $ 140,412                   

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 158,040                   $ 76,827                    $ 94,455                     $ 140,412                   

ARBITRAGE

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 50,904                     $ -                             $ -                              $ 50,904                     

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 50,904                     $ -                             $ -                              $ 50,904                     
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

ASSURANCE

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 8,851                       $ 29,078                    $ 31,401                     $ 6,528                       

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 8,851                       $ 29,078                    $ 31,401                     $ 6,528                       

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 148,647                   $ 15,481,725             $ 15,630,006             $ 366                          

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 148,647                   $ 15,481,725             $ 15,630,006             $ 366                          

CONSERVATIONCONSERVATION

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                              $ 157,895                  $ 157,895                   $ -                              

Liabilities

Due to other funds $ -                              $ 157,895                  $ 157,895                   $ -                              

DAKOTA-SCOTT WSA

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                              $ 4,756,152               $ 4,756,152               $ -                              

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                              $ 4,756,152               $ 4,756,152               $ -                              
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

DUI FORFEITURE FUND

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 5,811                       $ 11,710                    $ 6,535                       $ 10,986                     

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 5,811                       $ 11,710                    $ 6,535                       $ 10,986                     

ELECTRONIC LICENSE SYSTEM

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 119                          $ 463                         $ 582                          $ -                              

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 119                          $ 463                         $ 582                          $ -                              

FORFEITED TAX

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 624,730                   $ 145,378                  $ 2,658                       $ 767,450                   

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ -                               $ 2,883                        $ 2,133                        $ 750                           
Due to other governments 624,730                    145,378                    3,408                        766,700                    

      Total Liabilities $ 624,730                   $ 148,261                  $ 5,541                       $ 767,450                   

FORFEITED TAX ASSURANCE

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                               $ 4,337                      $ 15                            $ 4,322                       

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                               $ 4,337                      $ 15                            $ 4,322                       
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

HISTORICAL SOCIETY

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                               $ 268,890                    $ 268,890                    $ -                               
Due from other governments 73,844                      114,809                    108,755                    79,898                      

      Total Assets $ 73,844                     $ 383,699                  $ 377,645                   $ 79,898                     

Liabilities

Salaries payable $ 4,336                        $ 40,079                      $ 39,246                      $ 5,169                        
Due to other governments 69,508                      74,730                      69,509                      74,729                      

      Total Liabilities $ 73,844                     $ 114,809                  $ 108,755                   $ 79,898                     

LOCAL COLLABORATIVES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 432,408                   $ 610,309                  $ 646,205                   $ 396,512                   

LiabilitiesLiabilities

Accounts payable $ 432,408                   $ 610,309                  $ 646,205                   $ 396,512                   

METROPOLITAN EMERGENCY SERVICES BOARD (MESB)

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                               $ 891,431                    $ 891,431                    $ -                               
Due from other governments 84,660                      64,349                      84,660                      64,349                      

      Total Assets $ 84,660                     $ 955,780                  $ 976,091                   $ 64,349                     

Liabilities

Salaries payable $ 19,264                      $ 202,793                    $ 200,288                    $ 21,769                      
Due to other governments 65,396                      980,608                    1,003,424                 42,580                      

      Total Liabilities $ 84,660                     $ 1,183,401               $ 1,203,712               $ 64,349                     
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

METRO ALLIANCE FOR HEALTHY FAMILIES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 1,351,643                 $ 754,172                    $ 1,547,361                 $ 558,454                    
Accounts receivable -                               93                             -                               93                             

      Total Assets $ 1,351,643                $ 754,265                  $ 1,547,361               $ 558,547                   

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 813,227                    $ 1,085,082                 $ 1,492,807                 $ 405,502                    
Salaries payable 123,467                    -                               123,467                    -                               
Due to other governments 414,949                    465,475                    727,379                    153,045                    

      Total Liabilities $ 1,351,643                $ 1,550,557               $ 2,343,653               $ 558,547                   

METRO COUNCIL

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                              $ 3,741,407               $ 3,741,407               $ -                              

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                              $ 3,741,407               $ 3,741,407               $ -                              

METRO TRANSIT

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                              $ 4,486,928               $ 4,486,928               $ -                              

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                              $ 4,486,928               $ 4,486,928               $ -                              

METROPOLITAN INTER-COUNTY ASSOCIATION (MICA)

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 336,341                   $ 502,586                  $ 490,814                   $ 348,113                   

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 336,341                   $ 502,586                  $ 490,814                   $ 348,113                   
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

MINNESOTA CONSERVATION FUND

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 14,440                     $ 76,828                    $ 61,837                     $ 29,431                     

Liabilities
Due to other governments $ 14,440                     $ 76,828                    $ 61,837                     $ 29,431                     

MOSQUITO CONTROL

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                              $ 2,234,192               $ 2,234,192               $ -                              

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                              $ 2,234,192               $ 2,234,192               $ -                              

PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                              $ 52,863,006             $ 52,863,006             $ -                              

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ -                              $ 52,863,006             $ 52,863,006             $ -                              

SCHOOL DISTRICTS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                               $ 283,960,387           $ 283,960,387           $ -                              

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                               $ 283,960,387           $ 283,960,387           $ -                              
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

SHERIFF CIVIL FEES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 43,614                     $ 1,515,052               $ 1,505,097               $ 53,569                     

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 43,614                     $ 1,515,052               $ 1,505,097               $ 53,569                     

SHERIFF EVIDENCE FUND

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 1,290                       $ 100                         $ -                              $ 1,390                       

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 1,290                       $ 100                         $ -                              $ 1,390                       

SHERIFF INMATE FUNDS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 41                            $ -                               $ -                               $ 41                            

Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 41                            $ -                               $ -                               $ 41                            

SHERIFF TRUST FUND

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 64,971                     $ 10,203,407             $ 10,195,028             $ 73,350                     

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 64,971                     $ 10,203,407             $ 10,195,028             $ 73,350                     
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

SOCIAL WELFARE

Assets

Departmental cash $ 247,878                   $ 2,635,569               $ 2,686,516               $ 196,931                   

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 247,878                   $ 2,635,569               $ 2,686,516               $ 196,931                   

STATE REVENUE

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                              $ 21,524,959             $ 21,304,549             $ 220,410                   

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                              $ 21,524,959             $ 21,304,549             $ 220,410                   

TAXES AND PENALTIES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 23,739,430               $ 753,511,988             $ 749,936,674             $ 27,314,744               
Accounts receivable 38,668                      63,961                      38,668                      63,961                      

      Total Assets $ 23,778,098              $ 753,575,949           $ 749,975,342           $ 27,378,705              

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 152,746                    $ 2,123,811                 $ 1,942,507                 $ 334,050                    
Unapportioned taxes payable -                               60,603,530               60,603,530               -                               
Due to other funds -                               51,622                      51,622                      -                               
Due to other governments 23,625,352               749,155,331             745,736,028             27,044,655               

      Total Liabilities $ 23,778,098              $ 811,934,294           $ 808,333,687           $ 27,378,705              
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

TOWNS AND CITIES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                              $ 311,802,101           $ 311,802,101           $ -                               

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                              $ 311,802,101           $ 311,802,101           $ -                               

WATERSHED LEVY

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                               $ 101,646                  $ 101,646                   $ -                              

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                               $ 101,646                  $ 101,646                   $ -                              

TOTAL ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 27,288,393               $ 1,469,946,259          $ 1,466,924,451          $ 30,310,201               
Departmental cash 247,878                    2,635,569                 2,686,516                 196,931                    
Accounts receivable 38,833                      64,054                      38,833                      64,054                      
Due from other governments 159,755                    181,625                    194,983                    146,397                    

     Total Assets $ 27,734,859              $ 1,472,827,507        $ 1,469,844,783        $ 30,717,583              

Liabilities  
 

Accounts payable $ 1,835,041                 $ 59,557,560               $ 59,899,857               $ 1,492,744                 
Salaries payable 147,067                    242,872                    363,001                    26,938                      
Unapportioned taxes payable -                               60,603,530               60,603,530               -                               
Due to other funds -                               209,517                    209,517                    -                               
Due to other governments 25,752,751               1,411,570,498          1,408,125,348          29,197,901               

      Total Liabilities $ 27,734,859              $ 1,532,183,977        $ 1,529,201,253        $ 30,717,583              
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Assets

  Cash and investments $ 1,447,643        
  Taxes receivable
    Current 72,328             
    Prior - net 662                  
  Accounts receivable -                       
  Due from other governments 10,350             

      Total Assets $ 1,530,983        

Liabilities

  Current liabilities
    Accounts payable $ 45,092             
    Due to other governments 372,369           

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

VERMILLION RIVER WATERSHED DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET AND

    Total Liabilities $ 417,461           

Fund Balance/Net Assets

      Unreserved - Undesignated/ Unrestricted $ 1,113,522        

    Total Fund Balance/Net Assets $ 1,113,522        

     Total Liabilities and 
     Fund Balance/Net Assets $ 1,530,983        

There are no capital assets nor long term liabilities.  There is no difference
to reconcile between modified and full accrual.
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Revenues
  Taxes $ 1,023,239
  Intergovernmental 141,081
  Investment earnings 20,541
  Miscellaneous 1,701

      Total Revenues $ 1,186,562

Expenditures/Expenses
  Current
    Conservation of natural resources $ 1,245,246

  Net Change in Fund Balance/
   Net Assets $ (58,684)

Fund Balance/Net Assets - January 1 1,172,206

Fund Balance/Net Assets - December 31 $ 1,113,522

AND GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

VERMILLION RIVER WATERSHED DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

There are no capital outlays nor revenues that are not current financial resources.  There is no difference
to reconcile between modified and full accrual.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Governmental
Funds

Shared Revenue
  State
    Highway users tax $ 31,826,859      
    PERA rate reimbursement 333,927           
    Disparity reduction aid 1,681               
    Police aid 516,464           
    Agricultural preserve credit 49,583             
    County program aid 13,556,369      
    Market value credit 4,855,598        

    Total Shared Revenue $ 51,140,481      

Reimbursement for Services
  State
    Minnesota Department of Human 
     Services $ 21,549,865      

Payments
  Local
    County contributions $ 33,320             
    City contributions 604,306           
    Metropolitan council 3,591,475        
    City and agency share of construction 3,927,994        
    MELSA 174,240           
    Other contributions 937,250           
    Local contributions 523,453           
    Payments in lieu of taxes 65,277             

    Total Payments $ 9,857,315        

Grants
  State
    Minnesota Department of
      Public Safety $ 223,462           
      Transportation 4,813,028        
      Health 1,557,654        
      Natural Resources 18,041             
      Human Services 7,036,661        
     Water and Soil Resources Board 102,623           
     Employment and Economic Development 1,940,660        
     Pollution Control Agency 1,236,171        
     Trial courts 47,670             
     Housing Finance Agency 160,000           
     Secretary of State 7,129               
     Board of Peace Officers Standards and Training 34,092             
     Corrections 5,594,110        
     Veterans Affairs 81,564             

    Total State $ 22,852,865      
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Governmental
Funds

Grants (Continued)
  Federal 
    Department of
      Agriculture $ 5,353,322        
      Housing and Urban Development 3,112,510        
      Justice 349,984           
      Labor 2,670,248        
      Transportation 944,733           
      National Foundation on Arts and Humanities 25,414             
      Environmental Protection Agency 6,949               
      Energy 99,280             
      Education 92,226             
      Health and Human Services 24,564,438      
      Homeland Security 1,160,307        

    Total Federal $ 38,379,411      

    Total State and Federal Grants $ 61,232,276      

      Total Intergovernmental Revenue $ 143,779,937    
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Federal Grantor Federal
  Pass-Through Agency CFDA Passed Through
    Grant Program Title Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Agriculture
  Direct
    Farm and Ranch Lands Protection Program 10.913 $ 2,483,447        $ -                   
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Health
    Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women,
     Infants, and Children 10.557 1,135,343        -                   
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Education
    School Breakfast Program 10.553 13,604             -                   
    National School Lunch Program 10.555 18,332             -                   
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Human Services
    State Administrative Matching Grants for Supplemental 
      Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 1,658,306        -                   
    State Administrative Matching Grants for Supplemental 
      Nutrition Assistance Program -- ARRA 10.561 44,290             -                   

    Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 5,353,322       $ -                 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
  Direct

C it D l t Bl k G t 14 218 $ 1 594 809 $ 1 594 809    Community Development Block Grant 14.218 $ 1,594,809       $ 1,594,809      
    Supportive Housing Demonstrative Program 14.235 429,690           -                   
    HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 1,082,746        1,082,746        
    Homelessness Prevention-Rapid Re-Housing Program -- ARRA 14.257 5,265               -                   

    Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development $ 3,112,510       $ 2,677,555      

U.S. Department of Justice
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Public Safety
    Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant 16.523 $ 21,917             $ -                   
    Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 77,143             -                   
  Direct
    Edward Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Program 16.579 171,963           -                   
    State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) 16.606 69,770             -                   
    Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grant -- ARRA 16.710 9,191               -                   

    Total U.S. Department of Justice $ 349,984          $ -                 
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Federal Grantor Federal
  Pass-Through Agency CFDA Passed Through
    Grant Program Title Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Labor
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Employment
   and Economic Development
    Unemployment Insurance - Grants to States 17.225 $ 100,363           $ -                   
    Special Programs and Activities for the Disadvantaged 17.243 1,088               -                   
    WIA Adult Program 17.258 271,966           -                   
    WIA Adult Program -- ARRA 17.258 68,703             -                   
    WIA Youth Activities 17.259 358,840           -                   
    WIA Youth Activities -- ARRA 17.259 260,131           -                   
    WIA Dislocated Workers 17.260 797,942           -                   
    WIA Dislocated Workers -- ARRA 17.260 811,215           -                   

    Total U.S. Department of Labor $ 2,670,248       $ -                 

U.S. Department of Transportation
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Transportation
    Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 $ 837,508           $ -                   
    Highway Planning and Construction -- ARRA 20.205 22,477             -                   
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Public Safety

Mi i P lti f R t Off d f D i i Whil I t i t d 20 608 5 945    Minimum Penalties for Repeat Offenders for Driving While Intoxicated 20.608 5,945              -                 
  Passed Through Met Council
    Federal Transit Capital Assistance Grant 20.500 78,803             -                   

    Total U.S. Department of Transportation $ 944,733          $ -                 

U.S. National Foundation on Arts and Humanities
  Passed through Minnesota Department of Education
    Grants to States 45.310 $ 25,414             $ -                 

    Total U.S. Department of Energy $ 25,414            $ -                 

U.S. Department of Environmental Protection Agency
  Passed through Minnesota Pollution Control Agency
    Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants 66.460 $ 6,949               $ -                 

    Total U.S. Department of Education $ 6,949              $ -                 

U.S. Department of Energy
  Direct
    Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program -- ARRA 81.128 $ 99,280             $ -                 

    Total U.S. Department of Energy $ 99,280            $ -                 
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Federal Grantor Federal
  Pass-Through Agency CFDA Passed Through
    Grant Program Title Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Education
  Direct
    Special Education-Grants for Infants and Families with Disabilities 84.181 $ 92,226             $ -                 

    Total U.S. Department of Education $ 92,226            $ -                 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Health
    Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 $ 66,720             $ -                   
    Immunization Research, Demonstration, Public Information and 
      Education-Training and Clinical Skills Improvement Projects 93.185 68,973             -                   
    Immunization Grants 93.268 25,980             -                   
    Centers for Disease Control and Prevention - Investigations
     and Technical Assistance 93.283 437,371           -                   
    Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 325,367           -                   
    Refugee and Entrant Assistance 93.576 10,822             -                   
    State Children's Insurance Program 93.767 213                  -                   
    Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant 93.994 278,668           -                   
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Human Services

F il P ti d S t S i 93 556 205 340    Family Preservation and Support Services 93.556 205,340          -                 
    Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 3,634,370        -                   
    Child Support Enforcement Title IV-D 93.563 7,646,246        -                   
    Child Support Enforcement Title IV-D -- ARRA 93.563 713,339           -                   
    Community Based Child Abuse Prevention Grant 93.590 41,710             -                   
    Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds 93.596 486,132           -                   
    Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 1,983,949        -                   
    Foster Care Title IV-E -- ARRA 93.658 105,509           -                   
    Adoption Assistance -- ARRA 93.659 108,708           -                   
    Social Services Block Grant Title XX 93.667 1,550,000        -                   
    Chafee Foster Care Independence Program 93.674 84,852             -                   
    Medical Assistance Program 93.778 6,390,450        -                   
    Block Grant for Community Mental Health Services 93.958 232,440           -                   
    Block Grant for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 67,492             -                   
  Direct
    Transitional Living for Homeless Youth 93.550 99,787             -                   

    Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services $ 24,564,438    $ -                 
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Federal Grantor Federal
  Pass-Through Agency CFDA Passed Through
    Grant Program Title Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Public Safety
    Boating Safety Financial Assistance 97.012 $ 38,068             $ -                   
    Emergency Management Performance 97.042 56,500             -                   
    Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 1,065,739        -                   

    Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security $ 1,160,307       $ -                 

      Total Federal Awards $ 38,379,411    $ 2,677,555      
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1. Reporting Entity 
 
 The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activities of federal award 

programs expended by Dakota County.  The County’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 
to the financial statements. Dakota County’s financial statements include the operations of 
the Dakota County Community Development Agency (the CDA) component unit, which 
expended $20,928,521 in federal awards during the year ended December 31, 2009, which 
are not included in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.  The CDA has its own 
single audit.   

 
 
2. Basis of Presentation 
 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant 
activity of Dakota County under programs of the federal government for the year ended 
December 31, 2009.  The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Because the schedule presents only a 
selected portion of the operations of Dakota County, it is not intended to and does not 
present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Dakota County. 

 
3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in 
OMB Circular A-87,  Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  
Pass-through grant numbers were not assigned by the pass-through agencies.   

 
4. American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
 

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) requires recipients to 
clearly distinguish ARRA funds from non-ARRA funding.  In the schedule, ARRA funds 
are denoted by the addition of ARRA to the program name. 
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Statistical Section 
 
 

This part of Dakota County’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, 
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the County’s overall 
financial health. 
 
Contents            
            Page 
 
Financial Trends                       115 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County’s 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
 
Revenue Capacity          124 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the 
county’s ability to generate its property taxes. 
 
Debt Capacity           128 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability to the 
County’s current levels of outstanding debt and the County’s ability to issue additional debt 
in the future. 
 
Demographic and Economic Information        131 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 
the environment within which the County’s financial activities take place and to help make 
comparisons over time and with other governments. 
 
Operating Information          133 
These schedules contain information about the County’s operations and resources to help 
the reader understand how the County provides the activities it performs. 
 
 
 
 
Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.  The County implemented 
GASB Statement 34 in 2001; therefore, schedules that present entity-wide information 
begin in that year. 
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